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Cathy Thompson, Finance Director 
PO Box 128 * 228 S Second Street * Odessa, MO 

 
 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Monday, August 25, 2025 @ 4:30 p.m. 
City Hall, 228 S. 2nd St, Odessa, MO 64076 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. Approve minutes from July 23, 2025 Finance Committee meeting 
 

3. REVIEW NOVEMBER FINANCIALS 
a. July 2025 Summary Check Report 
b. July 2025 Detail Check Report 
c. July 2025 Purchase Card Activity Report 
d. July 2025 Budget Summary Report 
e. Long-Term Debt Payment Summary as of July 31, 2025 
f. Sales Tax Report 

 
4. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. Credit card processing fees 
b. 2024 Audit 
c. 2025 Audit 
d. Tax Levy 
e. Investment Options 

 
5. ADJOURN 

https://www.cityofodessamo.com/


 

 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Wednesday July 23, 2025 @ 5:30 p.m. 

City Hall, 228 S. 2nd St, Odessa, MO 64076 
  
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Alderwoman Ehlert; Alderman Whitsitt, Alderwoman Polson 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Cathy Thompson, Finance Director 
Angie Hughes, MOSIP 
Shawna Davis by telephone, City Administrator 
 
A motion was made by Member Whitsitt and seconded by Member Polson to amend the agenda and place 
Angie Hughes with Missouri Securities Investment Program (MOSIP) to the top of the agenda.  All voted 
aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Angie Hugues with MOSIP spoke to the committee about the various investment options they can provide 
the City at the request of the Finance Director.  The committee has authorized additional investigation 
into investing options and will hear from Joey McLiney, the City’s investment advisor, at the July 28th 
Board of Aldermen meeting. 
 
MINUTES 
A motion was made by Member Polson and seconded by Member Whitsitt to approve the minutes from 
the June 23, 2025 Finance Committee Meeting. All voted aye. Motion carried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No public comments were offered.  
 
REVIEW JANUARY FINANCIALS 
The Committee members reviewed the following financials for June 2025 and staff answered questions 
related to the reports.  

a. June 2025 Summary Check Report 
i. Member Ehlert asked for clarification on the following payments. 

1. Border States –  $290,422.87 – electrical portion of the downtown sidewalk project. 
2. Cannon Technologies - $29,259.00 – AMI software for meter reading.   
3. Global Payments - $26,062.29 – credit card processing fees 
4. KC Wireless - $4,956.17 – radio for new patrol vehicle 
5. Key Equipment & Supply - $124,147.11 – pipe inspection camera funded via CIP 

ii. Members discussed completing periodic requests for qualifications for attorney services. 
b. June 2025 Detail Check Report 
c. June 2025 Purchase Card Activity Report 

i. Member Whitsitt asked for clarification on the petty cash expenditures.  There are 
purchasing cards titled “petty cash” but no actual cash is handled. 

d. June 2025 Budget Summary Report 
e. June 2025 Q1 Budget Detail Report  
f. Long-Term Debt Payment Summary as of June 30, 2025 
g. Sales Tax Report 



i. Member Whitsitt explained his views on the rolling sales tax in relation to reviewing trends. 
Member Ehlert asked for month titles to be added to the presented graph.

ii. Members agreed a use tax discussion should be conducted at a Board of Aldermen meeting.

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a. Angie Hughes – Missouri Securities Investment Program (MOSIP)

i. Discussion noted above.
b. Credit card processing fees

i. Members are still concerned about the increasing credit card processing fees.  Finance
Director Thompson will attempt to negotiate the terms with our current processor.
Member Ehlert will discuss the ongoing concerns at the Board of Aldermen meeting and
ask for input on passing these fees on to the customers.

c. Purchase order module demonstration – July 31, 10:00
i. Members discussed whether now is the time to look at the purchase order module or if it

should be put on hold until some other projects are completed.  The consensus was that
internal controls and segregation of duties have consistently been an audit concern and
the committee acknowledges this concern needs to be addressed.  However, with the
current workload of the Finance Department along with current staffing shortages, now
may not be the best time.  The purchase order module demonstration will be put on held
for now and this concern needs to be addressed by the Board of Aldermen in the future.

ii. Members also discussed the scope of the audit and staff will work with the auditors to
review internal controls and seek their recommendations.

iii. Discussion was also held regarding an employee timekeeping module to assist with
payroll processes.

d. Investment advisor at July 28 Board meeting
i. Director Thompson advised Joey McLiney will be at the July 28th Board of Aldermen

meeting
e. Purchasing Policy

i. Members would like to finish up the purchasing policy and will be recommendations to
the August Committee meeting with the intention to place it before the Board of Aldermen 
in September for approval.

f. Investment Policy
i. No action was taken on the investment policy but Thompson asked it be placed on future

agendas until it is updated and approved.
g. Future meeting time/date

i. With the Board of Aldermen meetings moving to 6:00 p.m. it was discussed the need to
move the Finance Committee meetings to 4:30.  Member Polson will check with her work
to see if she can leave early to meet at 4:30 on the second Board of Aldermen monthly
meeting.  The next Committee meeting will be scheduled for 4:30 August 25th unless it
needs to be changed for Member Polson.

ADJOURN 
Member Polson motioned to adjourn, seconded by Member Whitsitt. The meeting was adjourned at 7:22 
pm. 

Approved (date) Finance Committee Chairwoman Ehlert 
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Check Summary Report Finance Committee
City of Odessa MO By Vendor Name

Date Range: 07/01/2025 - 07/31/2025

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount
Bank Code: APA-Payables

**Void** 07/10/2025 3054960.00Regular 0.00
**Void** 07/10/2025 3054970.00Regular 0.00

2865 Aflac 07/31/2025 DFT00018791,284.10Bank Draft 0.00
2865 Aflac 07/31/2025 DFT00019071,307.26Bank Draft 0.00
0096 Airgas USA LLC 07/17/2025 APA00398281.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6725 ALLIED SERVICES, LLC 07/10/2025 APA00396539,156.48Virtual Payment 0.00
0099 Allstate Consultants 07/10/2025 APA00396620,366.12Virtual Payment 0.00
1107 Alpha Underground Series - Alpha Custom Builders LLC07/10/2025 APA00396711,177.50Virtual Payment 0.00
1107 Alpha Underground Series - Alpha Custom Builders LLC07/24/2025 APA004013512.50Virtual Payment 0.00
4547 American Solutions for Business 07/03/2025 APA0039371,530.00Virtual Payment 0.00
4547 American Solutions for Business 07/24/2025 APA0040141,481.52Virtual Payment 0.00
4478 Anixter, Inc 07/03/2025 APA003938125.75Virtual Payment 0.00
1756 Arkansas Electric Cooperatives Inc 07/03/2025 APA0039394,864.63Virtual Payment 0.00
6211 Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, INC07/10/2025 APA0039689,300.03Virtual Payment 0.00
6141 BILL BAINBRIDGE 07/17/2025 305503100.00Regular 0.00
9007 Blue Springs Municipal Court 07/10/2025 305498100.00Regular 0.00
3393 Blue Springs Winwater Works Co 07/17/2025 APA00398315,852.97Virtual Payment 0.00
3393 Blue Springs Winwater Works Co 07/24/2025 APA004015931.48Virtual Payment 0.00
0069 Border States Electric Supply 07/03/2025 APA0039402,546.73Virtual Payment 0.00
0069 Border States Electric Supply 07/17/2025 APA0039844,087.09Virtual Payment 0.00
0069 Border States Electric Supply 07/24/2025 APA0040161,592.64Virtual Payment 0.00
2711 Brenntag Mid-South Inc. 07/17/2025 305504976.93Regular 0.00
0033 City of Odessa 07/15/2025 DFT000190311,587.51Bank Draft 0.00
8076 COLE ANDERSEN 07/17/2025 305505100.00Regular 0.00
2712 Comcast 07/07/2025 DFT00018841,157.72Bank Draft 0.00
2712 Comcast 07/09/2025 DFT0001884-1,157.72Bank Draft 0.00
2712 Comcast 07/06/2025 DFT00019041,157.72Bank Draft 0.00
6746 CONNECT PARENT CORPORATION 07/24/2025 APA004017229.70Virtual Payment 0.00
9060 Cooper County Circuit Court 07/10/2025 305499150.00Regular 0.00
0161 Core & Main 07/17/2025 APA0039852,851.32Virtual Payment 0.00
0161 Core & Main 07/24/2025 APA0040181,015.92Virtual Payment 0.00
7068 C-R FENCE 07/03/2025 APA003941173.15Virtual Payment 0.00
7068 C-R FENCE 07/17/2025 APA003986200.00Virtual Payment 0.00
2399 Crown Power & Equipment 07/03/2025 APA0039422,981.93Virtual Payment 0.00
7088 CT ELECTRIC 07/10/2025 APA00396911,720.00Virtual Payment 0.00
3259 David Decamp 07/14/2025 316331,500.00Regular 0.00
3259 David Decamp 07/11/2025 305502-1,500.00Regular 0.00
3259 David Decamp 07/11/2025 3055021,500.00Manual 0.00
8066 EMILY STOCKLAUFER 07/17/2025 305506200.00Regular 0.00
0072 Empire Electric Services & Technologies 07/17/2025 APA0039871,266.00Virtual Payment 0.00
1110 Enviro-Clear Inc. 07/25/2025 3055081,000.00Manual 0.00
1110 Enviro-Clear Inc. 07/25/2025 305508-1,000.00Regular 0.00
1110 Enviro-Clear Inc. 07/25/2025 3055091,000.00Regular 0.00
1545 Evergy 07/24/2025 APA0040193,844.49Virtual Payment 0.00
1064 EVERSTRIVE SOLUTIONS 07/03/2025 APA0039435,850.00Virtual Payment 0.00
3941 Family Support Payment Center 07/10/2025 DFT0001877276.92Bank Draft 0.00
3941 Family Support Payment Center 07/24/2025 DFT0001906276.92Bank Draft 0.00
0043 Feldmans #237 07/10/2025 APA003970426.94Virtual Payment 0.00
0043 Feldmans #237 07/17/2025 APA003988159.94Virtual Payment 0.00
0043 Feldmans #237 07/24/2025 APA00402078.00Virtual Payment 0.00
4616 Foley Industries 07/03/2025 APA0039441,394.95Virtual Payment 0.00
4616 Foley Industries 07/17/2025 APA0039891,131.99Virtual Payment 0.00
4616 Foley Industries 07/24/2025 APA004021876.43Virtual Payment 0.00
7010 GFI Digital 07/17/2025 APA00399021.75Virtual Payment 0.00



Check Summary Report Finance Committee Date Range: 07/01/2025 - 07/31/2025
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Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount
7010 GFI Digital 07/24/2025 APA004022716.34Virtual Payment 0.00
7007 Gibbs Technology Leasing Corporation 07/10/2025 APA003971444.02Virtual Payment 0.00
7007 Gibbs Technology Leasing Corporation 07/17/2025 APA003991107.27Virtual Payment 0.00
6753 GLOBAL PAYMENTS DIRECT 07/21/2025 DFT000190026,195.79Bank Draft 0.00
0167 Grainger Inc. 07/24/2025 APA0040231,055.50Virtual Payment 0.00
6328 HD GRAPHICS AND APPAREL, LLC 07/24/2025 APA004024515.20Virtual Payment 0.00
6332 Holliday Sand and Stone Company 07/17/2025 APA0039931,416.05Virtual Payment 0.00
2733 Internal Revenue Service 07/18/2025 DFT000193028,106.02Bank Draft 0.00
2630 JCI Industries Inc. 07/03/2025 APA00394520,557.00Virtual Payment 0.00
4468 K & M Tire, Inc 07/17/2025 APA0039941,043.00Virtual Payment 0.00
2198 Kansas City Southern Railway 07/24/2025 APA004025375.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6084 Kleinschmidt's Western Store 07/17/2025 APA003995369.88Virtual Payment 0.00
6770 LAUBER AND ASSOCIATES MUNICIPAL LAW LLC 07/10/2025 APA00397210,201.50Virtual Payment 0.00
6721 LEAF 07/03/2025 APA00394616,761.32Virtual Payment 0.00
3776 Lincoln National LIfe 07/31/2025 DFT00018781,590.70Bank Draft 0.00
3286 Mid-America Pump LLC 07/24/2025 APA004026975.00Virtual Payment 0.00
4349 Midwest Pool Management 07/03/2025 APA00394741,537.00Virtual Payment 0.00
4349 Midwest Pool Management 07/17/2025 APA00399610,560.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6052 Midwest Public Risk 07/03/2025 APA00394876,905.95Virtual Payment 0.00
6052 Midwest Public Risk 07/31/2025 DFT000188027,121.00Bank Draft 0.00
6052 Midwest Public Risk 07/31/2025 DFT000190823,369.00Bank Draft 0.00
1955 Mississippi Lime Company 07/03/2025 APA00394910,903.11Virtual Payment 0.00
6056 Missouri Association of Municipal Utilities 07/18/2025 DFT000190115,013.70Bank Draft 0.00
4648 Missouri City & County Management Association07/24/2025 APA004027150.00Virtual Payment 0.00
1234 Missouri Department of Natural Resources 07/24/2025 APA004028404.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0171 Missouri Department of Revenue 07/31/2025 DFT00018823,158.00Bank Draft 0.00
0171 Missouri Department of Revenue 07/31/2025 DFT00019102,971.00Bank Draft 0.00
3137 Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility Commission07/10/2025 APA003973359,188.46Virtual Payment 0.00
0090 Missouri Lagers 07/31/2025 DFT00018819,344.87Bank Draft 0.00
0090 Missouri Lagers 07/31/2025 DFT00019099,061.63Bank Draft 0.00
0091 Missouri Municipal League 07/24/2025 APA004029540.00Virtual Payment 0.00
3243 Missouri One Call System, Inc 07/17/2025 APA003997364.50Virtual Payment 0.00
0054 Missouri Police Chiefs Association 07/17/2025 APA003998950.00Virtual Payment 0.00
7004 Missouri State Highway Patrol 07/24/2025 APA004030285.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6327 MUDDY BOOTS, INC 07/03/2025 APA003950691.83Virtual Payment 0.00
6327 MUDDY BOOTS, INC 07/17/2025 APA003999482.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6327 MUDDY BOOTS, INC 07/24/2025 APA004031413.22Virtual Payment 0.00
0143 Murphy Tractor & Equipment Co. Inc. 07/03/2025 APA0039511,473.34Virtual Payment 0.00
0173 MyRec.com 07/24/2025 APA0040324,065.00Virtual Payment 0.00
1221 Napa Auto Parts Odessa 07/03/2025 APA003952136.27Virtual Payment 0.00
1221 Napa Auto Parts Odessa 07/17/2025 APA004000440.47Virtual Payment 0.00
1221 Napa Auto Parts Odessa 07/24/2025 APA004033113.94Virtual Payment 0.00
4266 Nuts & Bolts 07/03/2025 APA003953139.12Virtual Payment 0.00
4266 Nuts & Bolts 07/17/2025 APA004001186.88Virtual Payment 0.00
4266 Nuts & Bolts 07/24/2025 APA004034102.43Virtual Payment 0.00
2560 Oak Grove Rental 07/24/2025 APA00403592.36Virtual Payment 0.00
0402 Odessa Chamber of Commerce 07/10/2025 APA00397436.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0402 Odessa Chamber of Commerce 07/17/2025 APA00400212.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0045 Odessa Fire Rescue Protection District 07/24/2025 APA004036140.00Virtual Payment 0.00
3367 Odessa Winsupply 07/17/2025 APA004003443.48Virtual Payment 0.00
3367 Odessa Winsupply 07/24/2025 APA004037666.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0044 On Target Ammunition LLC 07/03/2025 APA0039542,330.00Virtual Payment 0.00
1971 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07/03/2025 APA003955266.25Virtual Payment 0.00
1971 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07/17/2025 APA00400442.17Virtual Payment 0.00
1971 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07/24/2025 APA00403818.27Virtual Payment 0.00
2313 Pace Analytical Services 07/17/2025 APA0040052,149.00Virtual Payment 0.00
7084 PREMIER PYROTECHNICS, INC 07/03/2025 APA00395613,000.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6637 QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC 07/24/2025 APA0040391,554.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0620 QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC 07/17/2025 APA004006217.55Virtual Payment 0.00
0620 QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC 07/24/2025 APA0040401,140.90Virtual Payment 0.00
0620 QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC 07/29/2025 DFT0001929970.00Bank Draft 0.00
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6708 RED EQUIPMENT, LLC 07/03/2025 APA003957400.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6708 RED EQUIPMENT, LLC 07/17/2025 APA004007143.52Virtual Payment 0.00
1092 RHINO INDUSTRIES, INC 07/24/2025 APA0040411,944.00Virtual Payment 0.00
1106 Rick Thomas Ditching Service Inc 07/10/2025 APA0039759,500.00Virtual Payment 0.00
9052 Ring Central 07/10/2025 APA0039761,329.98Virtual Payment 0.00
6311 ROLLINS ORKIN PEST CONTROL 07/10/2025 APA003977103.00Virtual Payment 0.00
7002 Rotary 07/10/2025 305500100.00Regular 0.00
2942 Schulte Supply, Inc 07/17/2025 APA004008528.68Virtual Payment 0.00
0021 Shane Newland Repair, LLC 07/03/2025 APA0039582,833.47Virtual Payment 0.00
0021 Shane Newland Repair, LLC 07/17/2025 APA0040091,733.86Virtual Payment 0.00
0021 Shane Newland Repair, LLC 07/24/2025 APA0040422,119.50Virtual Payment 0.00
1109 Shawna Smith 07/17/2025 305507100.00Regular 0.00
6026 Smico Contracting Group, LLC 07/24/2025 APA0040432,551.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0110 Spaar Publications LLC 07/17/2025 APA004010906.75Virtual Payment 0.00
0052 Spire 07/18/2025 DFT0001902430.15Bank Draft 0.00
1108 St Charles County Circuit Court 07/10/2025 305501500.00Regular 0.00
1026 STUART C. IRBY CO. 07/03/2025 APA003959562.39Virtual Payment 0.00
0893 Swell Signs 07/10/2025 APA003978180.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0741 T & R Electric Supply Co, Inc 07/03/2025 APA00396012,970.21Virtual Payment 0.00
6310 TNEMEC COMPANY INC 07/24/2025 APA0040444,675.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0055 Tyler Technologies 07/10/2025 APA0039795,822.25Virtual Payment 0.00
0132 UMB Bank 07/28/2025 DFT000189821,211.40Bank Draft 0.00
6689 Universal CDJR 07/03/2025 APA00396116.96Virtual Payment 0.00
6689 Universal CDJR 07/24/2025 APA004045122.30Virtual Payment 0.00
0008 USA Blue Book 07/17/2025 APA0039924,270.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0008 USA Blue Book 07/24/2025 APA004046591.13Virtual Payment 0.00
0034 USA Tax Payment 07/10/2025 DFT000188326,093.61Bank Draft 0.00
0034 USA Tax Payment 07/24/2025 DFT000191124,833.71Bank Draft 0.00
0014 Utility Services Co 07/10/2025 APA00398011,053.24Virtual Payment 0.00
0152 Vance Brothers, LLC 07/03/2025 APA003962377.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0152 Vance Brothers, LLC 07/17/2025 APA00401130,572.37Virtual Payment 0.00
3578 Verizon Wireless 07/03/2025 APA003963826.15Virtual Payment 0.00
3578 Verizon Wireless 07/24/2025 APA004047826.06Virtual Payment 0.00
0013 Voya Financial 07/10/2025 DFT00018761,495.00Bank Draft 0.00
0013 Voya Financial 07/24/2025 DFT00019051,495.00Bank Draft 0.00
0902 Walker Tire, Truck & Tow Service 07/03/2025 APA00396420.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0902 Walker Tire, Truck & Tow Service 07/17/2025 APA00401260.00Virtual Payment 0.00
3381 West Central Electric Coop Inc. 07/10/2025 APA0039819,962.82Virtual Payment 0.00
6755 WEX BANK 07/09/2025 DFT0001885-6,595.22Bank Draft 0.00
6755 WEX BANK 07/09/2025 DFT00018856,595.22Bank Draft 0.00
6755 WEX BANK 07/25/2025 DFT0001899-6,595.22Bank Draft 0.00
6755 WEX BANK 07/25/2025 DFT00018996,595.22Bank Draft 0.00
6755 WEX BANK 07/25/2025 DFT00019167,262.68Bank Draft 0.00
1103 ZACHARY J. RAINES 07/03/2025 305493500.00Regular 0.00

Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks

Discount
Payment

CountPayment Type

Bank Code APA Summary

Bank Drafts
EFT's

12
2
4

30
0

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

159 0.00

Payment
5,326.93
2,500.00

-2,500.00
245,613.69

0.00

1,092,448.79

Payable
Count

12
2
0

27
0

234
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All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment 

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

12

2

4

30

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

159 0.00

5,326.93

2,500.00

-2,500.00

245,613.69

0.00

1,092,448.79

12

2

0

27

0

234

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

99 Pooled Cash Fund 1,092,448.797/2025
1,092,448.79
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Check Summary Report Finance Committee
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Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount
Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount

Bank Code: APA-Payables
**Void** 07/10/2025 3054960.00Regular 0.00
**Void** 07/10/2025 3054970.00Regular 0.00

2865 Aflac 07/31/2025 DFT00018791,284.10Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002327 Invoice 07/10/2025 AFLAC - Post Tax 1,284.100.00

2865 Aflac 07/31/2025 DFT00019071,307.26Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002335 Invoice 07/24/2025 AFLAC - Post Tax 1,307.260.00

0096 Airgas USA LLC 07/17/2025 APA00398281.00Virtual Payment 0.00
5517697146 Invoice 07/17/2025 CUTTING TORCH TANKS AT STREET SHED 81.000.00

6725 ALLIED SERVICES, LLC 07/10/2025 APA00396539,156.48Virtual Payment 0.00
0468-004569434 Invoice 07/09/2025 RESIDENTIAL TRASH JUNE 2025 39,156.480.00

0099 Allstate Consultants 07/10/2025 APA00396620,366.12Virtual Payment 0.00
11544 Invoice 07/09/2025 ARPA ENGINEERING 9TH ST PROJECT 20,366.120.00

1107 Alpha Underground Series - Alpha Custom Builders LLC07/10/2025 APA00396711,177.50Virtual Payment 0.00
2222 Invoice 07/09/2025 ANNUAL LIVE FRONT TRANSFORMER REP 11,177.500.00

1107 Alpha Underground Series - Alpha Custom Builders LLC07/24/2025 APA004013512.50Virtual Payment 0.00
2270 Invoice 07/23/2025 Bore electric service to Pine Creek 512.500.00

4547 American Solutions for Business 07/03/2025 APA0039371,530.00Virtual Payment 0.00
INV08184650 Invoice 07/01/2025 UTILITY BILL PAPER 1,367.000.00
INV08184651 Invoice 07/01/2025 FISHING PERMIT PRINTING 163.000.00

4547 American Solutions for Business 07/24/2025 APA0040141,481.52Virtual Payment 0.00
INV08186363 Invoice 07/24/2025 Envelopes 1,481.520.00

4478 Anixter, Inc 07/03/2025 APA003938125.75Virtual Payment 0.00
6421779-00 Invoice 07/01/2025 WIRE CONNECTORS - INVENTORY RESTOC 125.750.00

1756 Arkansas Electric Cooperatives Inc 07/03/2025 APA0039394,864.63Virtual Payment 0.00
03144976 Invoice 07/01/2025 SECONDARY LUGS - PINE CREEK TRANSFO 635.280.00
03148467 Invoice 07/01/2025 ANCHORS AND RODS - INVENTORY RESTO 583.260.00
03148468 Invoice 07/01/2025 SECONDARY PEDESTALS - INVENTORY RES 2,040.000.00
03148583 Invoice 07/01/2025 GROUND RODS - INVENTORY RESTOCK 300.800.00
03150283 Invoice 07/01/2025 POLE REPLACEMENT 1,305.290.00

6211 Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, INC07/10/2025 APA0039689,300.03Virtual Payment 0.00
5665092 Invoice 07/10/2025 Cyber Liability 9,300.030.00

6141 BILL BAINBRIDGE 07/17/2025 305503100.00Regular 0.00
62225 Invoice 07/17/2025 Deposit refund for 6/22/25 rental 100.000.00

9007 Blue Springs Municipal Court 07/10/2025 305498100.00Regular 0.00
2406356132 Invoice 07/10/2025 Bond Ethan Ashu 2406356132 100.000.00

3393 Blue Springs Winwater Works Co 07/17/2025 APA00398315,852.97Virtual Payment 0.00
11507801 Invoice 07/17/2025 INVENTORY FOR WATER - RESTOCK PARTS 15,852.970.00

3393 Blue Springs Winwater Works Co 07/24/2025 APA004015931.48Virtual Payment 0.00
115078 03 Invoice 07/24/2025 Stock parts water 931.480.00
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0069 Border States Electric Supply 07/03/2025 APA0039402,546.73Virtual Payment 0.00
930407378 Invoice 07/01/2025 HOT LINE TOOLS 1,231.520.00
930568058 Invoice 07/01/2025 HOT LINE TOOLS 685.270.00
930646315 Invoice 07/01/2025 UNDERGROUND SPLICE KITS - INVENTORY  629.940.00

0069 Border States Electric Supply 07/17/2025 APA0039844,087.09Virtual Payment 0.00
930681039 Invoice 07/16/2025 STREET LIGHTS FOR INVENTORY 4,087.090.00

0069 Border States Electric Supply 07/24/2025 APA0040161,592.64Virtual Payment 0.00
930738318 Invoice 07/23/2025 TerminaƟon of underground primary - Inv 1,162.810.00
930765812 Invoice 07/24/2025 Insulators for inventory 429.830.00

2711 Brenntag Mid-South Inc. 07/17/2025 305504976.93Regular 0.00
BMS968249 Invoice 07/17/2025 July 2025 Ammonium Sulfate for water pl 976.930.00

0033 City of Odessa 07/15/2025 DFT000190311,587.51Bank Draft 0.00
51425 61325 Invoice 07/15/2025 UƟliƟes for city owned property 05/14 - 6 11,587.510.00

8076 COLE ANDERSEN 07/17/2025 305505100.00Regular 0.00
71025 Invoice 07/17/2025 Deposit refund for 7/10/25 rental 100.000.00

2712 Comcast 07/07/2025 DFT00018841,157.72Bank Draft 0.00
61125 Invoice 07/09/2025 INTERNET CONNECTION FEES 1,157.720.00

2712 Comcast 07/09/2025 DFT0001884-1,157.72Bank Draft 0.00
2712 Comcast 07/06/2025 DFT00019041,157.72Bank Draft 0.00

41625 51525 Invoice 07/06/2025 INTERNET CONNECTION FEES 4/16/25 to  1,157.720.00

6746 CONNECT PARENT CORPORATION 07/24/2025 APA004017229.70Virtual Payment 0.00
7132025 Invoice 07/24/2025 Fax 7/13/25 to 8/12/25 229.700.00

9060 Cooper County Circuit Court 07/10/2025 305499150.00Regular 0.00
704484926 Invoice 07/10/2025 Bond Fidel Okoko 04484926 150.000.00

0161 Core & Main 07/17/2025 APA0039852,851.32Virtual Payment 0.00
INV0018540 Invoice 07/16/2025 LAB TESTING 1,516.660.00
X235210 Invoice 07/17/2025 INVENTORY WATER 1,334.660.00

0161 Core & Main 07/24/2025 APA0040181,015.92Virtual Payment 0.00
X289925 Invoice 07/24/2025 Stock parts water 399.720.00
X372376 Invoice 07/24/2025 Stock parts water 616.200.00

7068 C-R FENCE 07/03/2025 APA003941173.15Virtual Payment 0.00
2940 Invoice 07/01/2025 WOOD FENCE @ DYER PARK 173.150.00

7068 C-R FENCE 07/17/2025 APA003986200.00Virtual Payment 0.00
2963 Invoice 07/16/2025 WOODEN FENCE POSTS 200.000.00

2399 Crown Power & Equipment 07/03/2025 APA0039422,981.93Virtual Payment 0.00
165H Invoice 07/01/2025 TURBO FOR TRACTOR 1,156.080.00
4H Invoice 07/01/2025 INTERCOOLE FOR CASE TRACTOR 1,825.850.00

7088 CT ELECTRIC 07/10/2025 APA00396911,720.00Virtual Payment 0.00
1509 Invoice 07/09/2025 REPLACE CONTROL PANEL AT NW PLANT -  11,720.000.00

3259 David Decamp 07/14/2025 316331,500.00Regular 0.00
070925 Invoice 07/11/2025 7/11/25 David DeCamp paint ball courts 1,500.000.00

3259 David Decamp 07/11/2025 305502-1,500.00Regular 0.00
3259 David Decamp 07/11/2025 3055021,500.00Manual 0.00

7925 Invoice 07/11/2025 7/11/25 David DeCamp paint ball courts 1,500.000.00

8066 EMILY STOCKLAUFER 07/17/2025 305506200.00Regular 0.00
62925 Invoice 07/17/2025 Refund for 6/29/25 rental 200.000.00
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0072 Empire Electric Services & Technologies 07/17/2025 APA0039871,266.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6373 Invoice 07/16/2025 FAN FOR WALL CABINET 1,266.000.00

1110 Enviro-Clear Inc. 07/25/2025 3055081,000.00Manual 0.00
2025053M Invoice 07/25/2025 12 day advanced wastewater treatment c 1,000.000.00

1110 Enviro-Clear Inc. 07/25/2025 305508-1,000.00Regular 0.00
1110 Enviro-Clear Inc. 07/25/2025 3055091,000.00Regular 0.00

2025053M Invoice 07/25/2025 12 day advanced wastewater treatment c 1,000.000.00

1545 Evergy 07/24/2025 APA0040193,844.49Virtual Payment 0.00
6780 7/15 Invoice 07/24/2025  6/13/25 to 7/15/25 - 6780 Golden Belt R 99.630.00
7/15/25 Invoice 07/24/2025 6/15/25 to 7/16/25 McGrew Mine Rd Wel 538.030.00
7/17/25 076958 Invoice 07/24/2025 6/15/25 to 7/16/25 McGrew Mine Rd Wel 3,206.830.00

1064 EVERSTRIVE SOLUTIONS 07/03/2025 APA0039435,850.00Virtual Payment 0.00
INV000083 Invoice 07/01/2025 BOA RETREAT AND FOCUS GROUPS 1&2 5,850.000.00

3941 Family Support Payment Center 07/10/2025 DFT0001877276.92Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002325 Invoice 07/10/2025 Alewine 61771722 276.920.00

3941 Family Support Payment Center 07/24/2025 DFT0001906276.92Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002334 Invoice 07/24/2025 Alewine 61771722 276.920.00

0043 Feldmans #237 07/10/2025 APA003970426.94Virtual Payment 0.00
233568 Invoice 07/09/2025 Uniforms Nick Stockton 232.980.00
233569 Invoice 07/09/2025 UNIFORMS MATT GUERRI 193.960.00

0043 Feldmans #237 07/17/2025 APA003988159.94Virtual Payment 0.00
233430 Invoice 07/16/2025 UNIFORMS WATT 159.940.00

0043 Feldmans #237 07/24/2025 APA00402078.00Virtual Payment 0.00
233628 Invoice 07/24/2025 Uniforms Matt Guerri 78.000.00

4616 Foley Industries 07/03/2025 APA0039441,394.95Virtual Payment 0.00
SS400099087 Invoice 07/01/2025 LEAK IN COOLANT LINE SKIDSTEER 1,394.950.00

4616 Foley Industries 07/17/2025 APA0039891,131.99Virtual Payment 0.00
SS400099358 Invoice 07/17/2025 FIX SEAL ON MILL MACHINE 1,131.990.00

4616 Foley Industries 07/24/2025 APA004021876.43Virtual Payment 0.00
SS400100347 Invoice 07/24/2025 Mill machine repair 876.430.00

7010 GFI Digital 07/17/2025 APA00399021.75Virtual Payment 0.00
3243458 Invoice 07/16/2025 JUNE OVERAGE WATER COOPIER 21.750.00

7010 GFI Digital 07/24/2025 APA004022716.34Virtual Payment 0.00
3249980 Invoice 07/24/2025 6/1/25 to 6/30/25 716.340.00

7007 Gibbs Technology Leasing Corporation 07/10/2025 APA003971444.02Virtual Payment 0.00
241132 Invoice 07/09/2025 COPIER LEASE - JULY 2025 444.020.00

7007 Gibbs Technology Leasing Corporation 07/17/2025 APA003991107.27Virtual Payment 0.00
241749 Invoice 07/16/2025 COPIER LEASE - AUGUST 2025 - WATER 107.270.00

6753 GLOBAL PAYMENTS DIRECT 07/21/2025 DFT000190026,195.79Bank Draft 0.00
63025 Invoice 07/21/2025 CREDIT CARD PROCESSING FEES JUNE 202 26,195.790.00

0167 Grainger Inc. 07/24/2025 APA0040231,055.50Virtual Payment 0.00
9566723376 Invoice 07/24/2025 Roof fan w/motor x2 1,055.500.00

6328 HD GRAPHICS AND APPAREL, LLC 07/24/2025 APA004024515.20Virtual Payment 0.00
000986 Invoice 07/23/2025 Concession and Park Staff Shirts 515.200.00
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6332 Holliday Sand and Stone Company 07/17/2025 APA0039931,416.05Virtual Payment 0.00
1500772412 Invoice 07/16/2025 ROCK 81.630.00
1500772920 Invoice 07/17/2025 STOCK PILE ROCK 1,334.420.00

2733 Internal Revenue Service 07/18/2025 DFT000193028,106.02Bank Draft 0.00
22025 corr Invoice 07/18/2025 7/18/25 Correct IRS deposit 28,106.020.00

2630 JCI Industries Inc. 07/03/2025 APA00394520,557.00Virtual Payment 0.00
8281388 Invoice 07/01/2025 PUMP LABOR CIP 6,679.000.00
8281473 Invoice 07/01/2025 PUMP - CIP 13,878.000.00

4468 K & M Tire, Inc 07/17/2025 APA0039941,043.00Virtual Payment 0.00
590436518 Invoice 07/17/2025 554 INT DUMP TIRE REPLACEMENT 1,043.000.00

2198 Kansas City Southern Railway 07/24/2025 APA004025375.00Virtual Payment 0.00
8000-000000083 Invoice 07/24/2025 Right of way for utilities @ railroad 375.000.00

6084 Kleinschmidt's Western Store 07/17/2025 APA003995369.88Virtual Payment 0.00
417133 Invoice 07/17/2025 Uniforms Brandon Alewine 369.880.00

6770 LAUBER AND ASSOCIATES MUNICIPAL LAW LLC 07/10/2025 APA00397210,201.50Virtual Payment 0.00
30543 Invoice 07/09/2025 JUNE PROSECUTOR 5,708.000.00
30544 Invoice 07/09/2025 JUNE 2025 CITY ATTORNEY FEES 4,493.500.00

6721 LEAF 07/03/2025 APA00394616,761.32Virtual Payment 0.00
18522687 Invoice 07/01/2025 ANNUAL PAYMENT TOUGHBOOKS 16,761.320.00

3776 Lincoln National LIfe 07/31/2025 DFT00018781,590.70Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002326 Invoice 07/10/2025 Lincoln National 1,590.700.00

3286 Mid-America Pump LLC 07/24/2025 APA004026975.00Virtual Payment 0.00
19563 Invoice 07/24/2025 Clayon Park Pump Station 975.000.00

4349 Midwest Pool Management 07/03/2025 APA00394741,537.00Virtual Payment 0.00
PF001657 Invoice 07/01/2025 JULY MANAGEMENT FEES POOL 41,537.000.00

4349 Midwest Pool Management 07/17/2025 APA00399610,560.00Virtual Payment 0.00
PF001707 Invoice 07/17/2025 SALARY FEE - AUGUST 2025 10,560.000.00

6052 Midwest Public Risk 07/03/2025 APA00394876,905.95Virtual Payment 0.00
WC20250509.36 Invoice 07/01/2025 25/26 WORKERS COMPENSATION CONTRI 76,905.950.00

6052 Midwest Public Risk 07/31/2025 DFT000188027,121.00Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002328 Invoice 07/10/2025 Dental Insurance 27,121.000.00

6052 Midwest Public Risk 07/31/2025 DFT000190823,369.00Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002336 Invoice 07/24/2025 Midwest Public Risk 23,369.000.00

1955 Mississippi Lime Company 07/03/2025 APA00394910,903.11Virtual Payment 0.00
CD104318 Invoice 07/03/2025 BULK LIME FOR WATER PLANT 10,903.110.00

6056 Missouri Association of Municipal Utilities 07/18/2025 DFT000190115,013.70Bank Draft 0.00
2008071825 Invoice 07/18/2025 7/18/25 Aquatic Center payment 15,013.700.00

4648 Missouri City & County Management Association07/24/2025 APA004027150.00Virtual Payment 0.00
14019 Invoice 07/24/2025 MCMA Chapter 150.000.00

1234 Missouri Department of Natural Resources 07/24/2025 APA004028404.00Virtual Payment 0.00
34602506896 Invoice 07/23/2025 DNR permit 204.000.00
34602601150 Invoice 07/24/2025 DNR Permit 200.000.00

0171 Missouri Department of Revenue 07/31/2025 DFT00018823,158.00Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002330 Invoice 07/10/2025 State Withholding 3,158.000.00

0171 Missouri Department of Revenue 07/31/2025 DFT00019102,971.00Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002338 Invoice 07/24/2025 State Withholding 2,971.000.00
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3137 Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility Commission07/10/2025 APA003973359,188.46Virtual Payment 0.00
26086 Invoice 07/09/2025 MOPEP SERVICE FOR JUNE 2025 359,188.460.00

0090 Missouri Lagers 07/31/2025 DFT00018819,344.87Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002329 Invoice 07/10/2025 Missouri Lagers 9,344.870.00

0090 Missouri Lagers 07/31/2025 DFT00019099,061.63Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002337 Invoice 07/24/2025 Missouri Lagers 9,061.630.00

0091 Missouri Municipal League 07/24/2025 APA004029540.00Virtual Payment 0.00
14890 Invoice 07/23/2025 Muncipal Governance Institute - Plachte 160.000.00
15027 Invoice 07/23/2025 Trust Building Strategies - Plachte 20.000.00
15186 Invoice 07/23/2025 Elected official training Plachte 360.000.00

3243 Missouri One Call System, Inc 07/17/2025 APA003997364.50Virtual Payment 0.00
5060255 Invoice 07/16/2025 LOCATES 364.500.00

0054 Missouri Police Chiefs Association 07/17/2025 APA003998950.00Virtual Payment 0.00
19330 Invoice 07/16/2025 SRO TRAINING 950.000.00

7004 Missouri State Highway Patrol 07/24/2025 APA004030285.00Virtual Payment 0.00
812HP03703370 Invoice 07/24/2025 MULES July, August, September 2025 285.000.00

6327 MUDDY BOOTS, INC 07/03/2025 APA003950691.83Virtual Payment 0.00
16004871 Invoice 07/01/2025 DRILL BITS FOR POOL 14.980.00
16005120 Invoice 07/01/2025 SEALANT FOR POOL PAD 8.990.00
16005313 Invoice 07/01/2025 PAINT BB GOAL POST CHESTNUT PARK 50.230.00
16006387 Invoice 07/01/2025 CITY HALL FLAG POLE REPAIR 8.690.00
16007587 Invoice 07/01/2025 NAILS FOR DRAG 41.980.00
16007676 Invoice 07/01/2025 PAINT SUPPLIES FOR GRAFFITI 46.260.00
16007949 Invoice 07/01/2025 ZIP TIES / KEYS 52.440.00
16008828 Invoice 07/01/2025 DRILL FASTENERS 19.500.00
16008904 Invoice 07/01/2025 DRILL EXTENSION 8.990.00
16010392 Invoice 07/01/2025 BUNGEECORD FOR MOWER 2.790.00
16010476 Invoice 07/01/2025 DRILL PIECES 65.970.00
16010554 Invoice 07/01/2025 KEROSENE FOR VACTRON 179.970.00
16010604 Invoice 07/01/2025 LIFEGUARD CHAIR CAPS 10.360.00
16011023 Invoice 07/01/2025 CITY HALL FLAG POLE REPAIR 10.350.00
16012781 Invoice 07/01/2025 LINEMAN PLIERS 39.990.00
16013673 Invoice 07/01/2025 PLUG FOR PUMP AT POOL 3.380.00
16014181 Invoice 07/01/2025 WASP SPRAY / FLY TRAPS 31.960.00
16014183 Invoice 07/01/2025 GUN RANGE LUMBER 54.720.00
16014308 Invoice 07/01/2025 HOSE FOR WATER PLANT 37.990.00
16014890 Invoice 07/01/2025 COUPLING 2.290.00

6327 MUDDY BOOTS, INC 07/17/2025 APA003999482.00Virtual Payment 0.00
16013652 Invoice 07/16/2025 CHAINSAW CHAIN 20.990.00
16016261 Invoice 07/16/2025 FLY TRAPS 6.990.00
16016651 Invoice 07/16/2025 BATTERY FOR CHAINSAW 309.990.00
16016652 Invoice 07/16/2025 WIRE NUTS FOR STREET LIGHTS 12.990.00
16016670 Invoice 07/16/2025 NOZZLE GLOVES 29.600.00
16017240 Invoice 07/17/2025 QUICKIE SAW 76.990.00
16017276 Invoice 07/16/2025 JIGSAW BLADE / OSB 24.450.00

6327 MUDDY BOOTS, INC 07/24/2025 APA004031413.22Virtual Payment 0.00
16010440 Invoice 07/24/2025 Slide pad adhesive 119.980.00
16010599 Invoice 07/24/2025 Batteries 13.990.00
16012839 Invoice 07/24/2025 Bit for pool 11.990.00
16013081 Invoice 07/24/2025 Caution tape 6.990.00
16014330 Invoice 07/24/2025 Office keys 9.960.00
16017598 Invoice 07/24/2025 Sealant 15.980.00
16017674 Invoice 07/24/2025 Weed eater string 70.990.00
16017826 Invoice 07/24/2025 Vacuum for office 109.990.00
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16017906 Invoice 07/23/2025 Conduit Straps 8.760.00
16018329 Invoice 07/24/2025 Bolts for temporary service 44.590.00

0143 Murphy Tractor & Equipment Co. Inc. 07/03/2025 APA0039511,473.34Virtual Payment 0.00
2444265 Invoice 07/01/2025 BLADES FOR MOWER 953.340.00
2476689 Invoice 07/01/2025 6/2/25 - 6/29/25 EXCAVATOR LEASE 520.000.00

0173 MyRec.com 07/24/2025 APA0040324,065.00Virtual Payment 0.00
03217829S Invoice 07/24/2025 4/1/25 Recreation Management Software 4,065.000.00

1221 Napa Auto Parts Odessa 07/03/2025 APA003952136.27Virtual Payment 0.00
232314 Invoice 07/01/2025 HYDRAULIC HOSE FOR SKID STEER 51.190.00
232469 Invoice 07/01/2025 HYDRAULIC FITTING FOR SKID STEER 1.040.00
232870 Invoice 07/01/2025 JETTER HOSE REPAIR 84.040.00

1221 Napa Auto Parts Odessa 07/17/2025 APA004000440.47Virtual Payment 0.00
233320 Invoice 07/17/2025 FUEL ADDITIVE 38.970.00
233472 Invoice 07/16/2025 SLUDGE TRUCK REPAIR PARTS 401.500.00

1221 Napa Auto Parts Odessa 07/24/2025 APA004033113.94Virtual Payment 0.00
334208 Invoice 07/24/2025 Antifreeze 113.940.00

4266 Nuts & Bolts 07/03/2025 APA003953139.12Virtual Payment 0.00
16704/0 Invoice 07/01/2025 DUCK TAPE FOR PAD 19.480.00
16761/0 Invoice 07/01/2025 PROPANE 13.640.00
16832/0 Invoice 07/01/2025 BLADES 106.000.00

4266 Nuts & Bolts 07/17/2025 APA004001186.88Virtual Payment 0.00
16894/0 Invoice 07/16/2025 SPRAYER AND BAGS 186.880.00

4266 Nuts & Bolts 07/24/2025 APA004034102.43Virtual Payment 0.00
16793/0 Invoice 07/24/2025 Drill bit for pool 23.980.00
16828/0 Invoice 07/24/2025 Fly traps for pool 12.480.00
16915/0 Invoice 07/24/2025 Office cleaning supplies 65.970.00

2560 Oak Grove Rental 07/24/2025 APA00403592.36Virtual Payment 0.00
104918 Invoice 07/24/2025 Scaffolding for painting pool 92.360.00

0402 Odessa Chamber of Commerce 07/10/2025 APA00397436.00Virtual Payment 0.00
628 Invoice 07/09/2025 JULY MEMBERSHIP MEETING 36.000.00

0402 Odessa Chamber of Commerce 07/17/2025 APA00400212.00Virtual Payment 0.00
581 Invoice 07/16/2025 APRIL LUNCHEON 12.000.00

0045 Odessa Fire Rescue Protection District 07/24/2025 APA004036140.00Virtual Payment 0.00
7325 Invoice 07/24/2025 Standby for fireworks 140.000.00

3367 Odessa Winsupply 07/17/2025 APA004003443.48Virtual Payment 0.00
396495-01 Invoice 07/17/2025 SOCCER GOALS 443.480.00

3367 Odessa Winsupply 07/24/2025 APA004037666.00Virtual Payment 0.00
400647 01 Invoice 07/24/2025 Repair water line Conner 33.600.00
400659 01 Invoice 07/24/2025 Water line repair Conner 63.000.00
401037 01 Invoice 07/24/2025 Water leak on Chestnut 569.400.00

0044 On Target Ammunition LLC 07/03/2025 APA0039542,330.00Virtual Payment 0.00
m657 Invoice 06/30/2025 Ammunition 2,330.000.00

1971 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07/03/2025 APA003955266.25Virtual Payment 0.00
0269-461490 Invoice 07/01/2025 SERVICE TRUCK 165.960.00
0269-461496 Invoice 07/01/2025 HOSE FOR TRASH PUMP SERVICE TRUCK 0.340.00
0269-461620 Invoice 07/01/2025 CLAMP 21.980.00
0269-461791 Invoice 07/01/2025 HITCH TO PULL NEW TRAILER 77.970.00

1971 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07/17/2025 APA00400442.17Virtual Payment 0.00
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0269-463606 Invoice 07/16/2025 EXTREME TIRE 16.980.00
0269464213 Invoice 07/16/2025 BELT 25.190.00

1971 O'Reilly Auto Parts 07/24/2025 APA00403818.27Virtual Payment 0.00
0269-465137 Invoice 07/24/2025 Air filter 18.270.00

2313 Pace Analytical Services 07/17/2025 APA0040052,149.00Virtual Payment 0.00
2560229840 Invoice 07/17/2025 LAB TESTING 1,326.000.00
2560230561 Invoice 07/16/2025 LAB FEES 284.000.00
2560230587 Invoice 07/16/2025 LAB FEES 539.000.00

7084 PREMIER PYROTECHNICS, INC 07/03/2025 APA00395613,000.00Virtual Payment 0.00
0026041-IN Invoice 07/01/2025 2025 FIREWORKS 13,000.000.00

6637 QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC 07/24/2025 APA0040391,554.00Virtual Payment 0.00
6/26/25 3124159 Invoice 07/24/2025 6/26/25 Postage 1,554.000.00

0620 QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC 07/17/2025 APA004006217.55Virtual Payment 0.00
17771606 Invoice 07/17/2025 POSTAGE SUPPLIES 217.550.00

0620 QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC 07/24/2025 APA0040401,140.90Virtual Payment 0.00
Q1942766 Invoice 07/24/2025 8/16/25 to 11/15/25 Lease Payment 1,140.900.00

0620 QUADIENT LEASING USA, INC 07/29/2025 DFT0001929970.00Bank Draft 0.00
BH3799546973 Invoice 07/31/2025 Prepaid postage 970.000.00

6708 RED EQUIPMENT, LLC 07/03/2025 APA003957400.00Virtual Payment 0.00
P01922 Invoice 07/01/2025 BROOOMS FOR SWEEPER 400.000.00

6708 RED EQUIPMENT, LLC 07/17/2025 APA004007143.52Virtual Payment 0.00
001998 Invoice 07/16/2025 NOZZLE FOR SWEEPER 143.520.00

1092 RHINO INDUSTRIES, INC 07/24/2025 APA0040411,944.00Virtual Payment 0.00
3824 Invoice 07/24/2025 Chemicals for plants 1,944.000.00

1106 Rick Thomas Ditching Service Inc 07/10/2025 APA0039759,500.00Virtual Payment 0.00
5691 Invoice 07/09/2025 LIME SILO REPAIRS - CIP 9,500.000.00

9052 Ring Central 07/10/2025 APA0039761,329.98Virtual Payment 0.00
50347632 Invoice 07/09/2025 8/1/25 TO 8/31/25 PHONE SERVICE 1,329.980.00

6311 ROLLINS ORKIN PEST CONTROL 07/10/2025 APA003977103.00Virtual Payment 0.00
280908531 Invoice 07/09/2025 JULY PEST CONTROL CITY HALL 103.000.00

7002 Rotary 07/10/2025 305500100.00Regular 0.00
71 1231 25 Invoice 07/10/2025 Rotary Dues 7/1/25 - 12/31/25 100.000.00

2942 Schulte Supply, Inc 07/17/2025 APA004008528.68Virtual Payment 0.00
S1231316.001 Invoice 07/17/2025 MARKING PAINT AND FLAGS 528.680.00

0021 Shane Newland Repair, LLC 07/03/2025 APA0039582,833.47Virtual Payment 0.00
1006 Invoice 07/01/2025 LOAD CELL ON CHLORINE SCALE 2,833.470.00

0021 Shane Newland Repair, LLC 07/17/2025 APA0040091,733.86Virtual Payment 0.00
1001 Invoice 07/17/2025 REBUILD CHLORINE VACUUM 1,733.860.00

0021 Shane Newland Repair, LLC 07/24/2025 APA0040422,119.50Virtual Payment 0.00
1013 Invoice 07/24/2025 New modem at wells / repair bulk water s 2,119.500.00

1109 Shawna Smith 07/17/2025 305507100.00Regular 0.00
062825 Invoice 07/17/2025 Deposit refund for 6/28/25 rental 100.000.00

6026 Smico Contracting Group, LLC 07/24/2025 APA0040432,551.00Virtual Payment 0.00
OdessaPool Invoice 07/23/2025 Repair piping to slide pump 2,551.000.00
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0110 Spaar Publications LLC 07/17/2025 APA004010906.75Virtual Payment 0.00
6261 Invoice 07/16/2025 STRATEGIC PLAN AD 111.000.00
6263 Invoice 07/16/2025 FIREWORKS RULES AD 171.750.00
6264 Invoice 07/16/2025 4TH OF JULY AD 277.000.00
6265 Invoice 07/16/2025 SEMI ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT 148.500.00
6270 Invoice 07/16/2025 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 148.500.00
6282 Invoice 07/16/2025 CALENDAR 50.000.00

0052 Spire 07/18/2025 DFT0001902430.15Bank Draft 0.00
071825 Invoice 07/18/2025 6/5/25 to 7/3/25 Gas Service 430.150.00

1108 St Charles County Circuit Court 07/10/2025 305501500.00Regular 0.00
23ARFTA759 Invoice 07/10/2025 BOND - Benjamin Martin - 12ADFTA759 500.000.00

1026 STUART C. IRBY CO. 07/03/2025 APA003959562.39Virtual Payment 0.00
S014199806002 Invoice 07/01/2025 PRIMARY FUSE LINKS - INVENTORY RESTO 562.390.00

0893 Swell Signs 07/10/2025 APA003978180.00Virtual Payment 0.00
441494 Invoice 07/09/2025 DOOR HANGERS 180.000.00

0741 T & R Electric Supply Co, Inc 07/03/2025 APA00396012,970.21Virtual Payment 0.00
183245 Invoice 07/03/2025 TRANSFORMER INVOICED TO ADVANCED  12,970.210.00

6310 TNEMEC COMPANY INC 07/24/2025 APA0040444,675.00Virtual Payment 0.00
2724181 Invoice 07/24/2025 Paint for Pool 4,675.000.00

0055 Tyler Technologies 07/10/2025 APA0039795,822.25Virtual Payment 0.00
025-517026 Invoice 07/09/2025 INSITE TRANSACTION FEES 4/25 to 6/30/2 5,768.750.00
025-517506 Invoice 07/09/2025 UTILITY BILL NOTIFICATION CALLS  4/1/25  53.500.00

0132 UMB Bank 07/28/2025 DFT000189821,211.40Bank Draft 0.00
07282025 Invoice 07/28/2025 Purchase cards June 2025 21,211.400.00

6689 Universal CDJR 07/03/2025 APA00396116.96Virtual Payment 0.00
1606701 1 Invoice 07/01/2025 AIR FILTER 2021 CHARGER 16.960.00

6689 Universal CDJR 07/24/2025 APA004045122.30Virtual Payment 0.00
1606991/1 Invoice 07/23/2025 Pigtail to transfer case OPD508 122.300.00

0008 USA Blue Book 07/17/2025 APA0039924,270.00Virtual Payment 0.00
INV00724806 Invoice 07/16/2025 WATER TESTING METER 4,270.000.00

0008 USA Blue Book 07/24/2025 APA004046591.13Virtual Payment 0.00
INV00757500 Invoice 07/23/2025 40 ft 2 wire SPST float switch 591.130.00

0034 USA Tax Payment 07/10/2025 DFT000188326,093.61Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002331 Invoice 07/10/2025 US Tax Payment 941 26,093.610.00

0034 USA Tax Payment 07/24/2025 DFT000191124,833.71Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002339 Invoice 07/24/2025 US Tax Payment 941 24,833.710.00

0014 Utility Services Co 07/10/2025 APA00398011,053.24Virtual Payment 0.00
629312 Invoice 07/09/2025 QUARTERLY WATER TOWER MAINTENANC 11,053.240.00

0152 Vance Brothers, LLC 07/03/2025 APA003962377.00Virtual Payment 0.00
IC00078959 Invoice 07/01/2025 PAINT FOR DYER PARK B BALL COURTS 377.000.00

0152 Vance Brothers, LLC 07/17/2025 APA00401130,572.37Virtual Payment 0.00
IG00031702 Invoice 07/17/2025 NORTH 3RD PAVING 16,031.210.00
IG00031725 Invoice 07/17/2025 NORTH RUSSELL PAVING 13,976.910.00
ZL00069255 Invoice 07/16/2025 PATCH 564.250.00

3578 Verizon Wireless 07/03/2025 APA003963826.15Virtual Payment 0.00
6116114956 Invoice 07/01/2025 5/16/25 - 6/15/25 CELL PHONES 826.150.00

3578 Verizon Wireless 07/24/2025 APA004047826.06Virtual Payment 0.00
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Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount
Payable # Post Date Payable Description Payable AmountPayable Type Discount Amount
6118628456 Invoice 07/24/2025 6/16/25 to 7/15/25 826.060.00

0013 Voya Financial 07/10/2025 DFT00018761,495.00Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002324 Invoice 07/10/2025 Voya 1,495.000.00

0013 Voya Financial 07/24/2025 DFT00019051,495.00Bank Draft 0.00
INV0002333 Invoice 07/24/2025 Voya 1,495.000.00

0902 Walker Tire, Truck & Tow Service 07/03/2025 APA00396420.00Virtual Payment 0.00
85572 Invoice 07/01/2025 FLAT TIRE REPAIR 20.000.00

0902 Walker Tire, Truck & Tow Service 07/17/2025 APA00401260.00Virtual Payment 0.00
85545 Invoice 07/16/2025 TIRE REPAIR DUMP TRUCK 40.000.00
85613 Invoice 07/16/2025 FLAT TIRE REPAIR 20.000.00

3381 West Central Electric Coop Inc. 07/10/2025 APA0039819,962.82Virtual Payment 0.00
48047002 JUNE 2 Invoice 07/09/2025 PAVILION FOR CITY LATE JUNE 2025 42.000.00
48047003 JUNE 2 Invoice 07/09/2025 STREET LIGHTS @ CITY LAKE JUNE 2025 92.700.00
48047004 JUNE 2 Invoice 07/09/2025 7147 HUGHES ROAD JUNE 2025 3,432.000.00
48047005 JUNE 2 Invoice 07/09/2025 11023 STARR SCHOOL RD JUNE 2025 6,396.120.00

6755 WEX BANK 07/09/2025 DFT0001885-6,595.22Bank Draft 0.00
6755 WEX BANK 07/09/2025 DFT00018856,595.22Bank Draft 0.00

INV0002332 Invoice 07/09/2025 June 2025 Fuel purchase 6,595.220.00

6755 WEX BANK 07/25/2025 DFT0001899-6,595.22Bank Draft 0.00
6755 WEX BANK 07/25/2025 DFT00018996,595.22Bank Draft 0.00

105741687 Invoice 07/25/2025 Fuel purchases June 2025 6,595.220.00

6755 WEX BANK 07/25/2025 DFT00019167,262.68Bank Draft 0.00
07252025 Invoice 07/25/2025 7/25/25 Fuel Purchase Cards JUNE acƟvit 7,262.680.00

1103 ZACHARY J. RAINES 07/03/2025 305493500.00Regular 0.00
2025-001 Invoice 07/01/2025 FIREWORKS DJ 500.000.00

Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Voided Checks

Discount
Payment

CountPayment Type

Bank Code APA Summary

Bank Drafts
EFT's

12
2
4

30
0

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

159 0.00

Payment
5,326.93
2,500.00

-2,500.00
245,613.69

0.00

1,092,448.79

Payable
Count

12
2
0

27
0

234
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All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment 

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

12

2

4

30

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

159 0.00

5,326.93

2,500.00

-2,500.00

245,613.69

0.00

1,092,448.79

12

2

0

27

0

234

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

99 Pooled Cash Fund 1,092,448.797/2025
1,092,448.79



City of Odessa Credit Card Transactions
UMB Bank, Statement Period 07/02/2025 to 08/01/2025

Account One

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/6/2025 Nrtc Rural Broadband, WWTP internet 140.78$        140.78$          40-40-5302
Debit Total USD 140.78$        
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 140.78$        

Account Two

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/9/2025 Dollar-General #9148 Dog pound smoke detector battery 6.45$             6.45$               10-11-5306
7/17/2025 Dollar-General #9148 Water and ice 20.60$           20.60$             20-20-5312

Debit Total USD 27.05$           
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 27.05$           

Cathy Thompson

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/16/2025 Amazon Mktpl Trash Cans 18.73$           18.73$             10-10-5311
7/16/2025 Amazon.Com*131j72c73 Labels 27.44$           27.44$             10-10-5306
7/16/2025 Amazon Mktpl Office supplies City Hall 59.97$           59.97$             10-10-5306
7/18/2025 Pgv*recorder Of Deeds Recording of easement 34.00$           34.00$             10-10-5225
7/20/2025 Mo Dmv Registration sewer jetter truck 15.04$           15.04$             40-40-5421



7/20/2025 Amazon Mktpl Office supplies City Hall 39.72$           39.72$             10-10-5306
7/22/2025 Amazon Mktplace Pmts Returned office supplies City Hall (49.99)$         (49.99)$           10-10-5306
7/24/2025 Amazon Mktpl Canned air 24.03$           24.03$             10-10-5306
7/25/2025 Amazon Mktpl Office supplies 96.46$           96.46$             10-10-5306
7/27/2025 Amazon Mktpl Chargers and monitor stand 101.15$        101.15$          10-10-5306
7/29/2025 Amazon Mktpl Monitor power cable 11.39$           11.39$             10-10-5306

8/1/2025 Py *missouri Economic Dev MEDC Governor's Conference Davis & Thompson 650.00$        650.00$          10-10-5500
Debit Total USD 1,077.93$    
Credit Total USD (49.99)$         
Total USD 1,027.94$    

Christi Dickey

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/17/2025 Pgv*recorder Of Deeds Laerdo Service County 82.50$           82.50$             10-17-5400
Debit Total USD 82.50$           
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 82.50$           

Darren Ellison

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/27/2025 The Home Depot #3024 Temp electric service (contractors and puddle jump 198.02$        198.02$          20-20-5312
Debit Total USD 198.02$        
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 198.02$        

Darrin Lamb

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/16/2025 Amazon.Com*sl28s71a3 Muck boots for Justin Smith 75.00$           75.00$             10-14-5180



7/25/2025 Wash N Roll Car Wash Washed city truck 8.25$             8.25$               30-30-5423
Debit Total USD 83.25$           
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 83.25$           

Josh Thompson

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/3/2025 Verizon GPS tracking of police vehicles 209.40$        209.40$          10-11-5423
7/3/2025 Wal-Mart #0326 Storage equipment and tools for new firearms trailer  222.91$        222.91$          10-11-5181
7/8/2025 Odessa Animal Clinic Medication for K9 "Hawkeye" 43.26$           43.26$             10-11-5323

7/17/2025 Odessa Animal Clinic Medication / Vaccination for K9 "Radar" 22.66$           22.66$             10-11-5323
7/18/2025 Amazon Mktpl New duty belt for police officer 19.94$           19.94$             10-11-5180
7/20/2025 Wal-Mart #326 Surge protected power strip for Body Camera downl 21.92$           21.92$             10-11-5425
7/20/2025 Wal-Mart #0326 Awards - Officers / Staff 40.00$           40.00$             10-11-5321
7/20/2025 Amazon.Com*1x6ut8633 Copy paper for police department 119.91$        119.91$          10-11-5306
7/20/2025 Universal Chrysler Dodge Oil change agreement OPD505 vehicle 190.00$        190.00$          10-11-5423
7/23/2025 Tractor Supply #2851 Dog food for K9 "Hawkeye" 115.98$        115.98$          10-11-5323
7/23/2025 Amazon Mktpl Cabin air filters for police Dodge Durango vehicles 47.94$           47.94$             10-11-5423
7/24/2025 American Assoc Of Code AACE Code Enforcement online training membershi   75.00$           75.00$             10-11-5181
7/24/2025 Whooster Digital evidence & intelligence records search datab 250.00$        250.00$          10-11-5320
7/25/2025 Green Hills Telephone Co 911 Dispatch transfer phone line 42.27$           42.27$             10-11-5301
7/30/2025 Sq *gilkey Auto Detailing Decontamination cleaning carpet / seat interior of O 120.00$        120.00$          10-11-5423
7/30/2025 Amazon.Com*vv9ge80z3 New hose and retractable wall mount reel for decon     127.99$        127.99$          10-11-5322
7/31/2025 Verizon GPS tracking of police vehicles 209.40$        209.40$          10-11-5423

8/1/2025 Amazon Mktpl Network cables for server room at PD 8.87$             8.87$               10-11-5403
Debit Total USD 1,887.45$    
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 1,887.45$    



Karen Findora

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/4/2025 Dollar-General #9148 Wtr & Ice Fireworks 37.00$           37.00$             10-10-5501
7/4/2025 Nerds Hardware Donation Buckets Fireworks 46.60$           46.60$             10-10-5501
7/4/2025 Sq *hd Graphics & Apparel City Staff Shirts - Fireworks 76.00$           76.00$             10-10-5501
7/8/2025 Wyndham MML Conf Hotel Credit (122.85)$      (122.85)$        10-10-5181
7/8/2025 Wyndham MML Conf Hotel Credit (122.85)$      (122.85)$        10-10-5181
7/8/2025 Wyndham MML Conf Hotel _Credit (122.85)$      (122.85)$        10-10-5181
7/8/2025 Wyndham MML Conf Hotel Credit (122.85)$      (122.85)$        10-10-5181

7/10/2025 Alac Services May Window Clean City Hall 50.00$           50.00$             10-10-5227
7/10/2025 Mo Main St Mo Main Street Conf_Barner, Bryan 80.00$           80.00$             10-10-5503
7/10/2025 Mo Main St Mo Main Street Conf_Barner, Bryan 450.00$        450.00$          10-10-5503
7/11/2025 Amazon Reta* Nl4pw1dn0 Ofc Supplies 45.11$           45.11$             10-12-5306
7/11/2025 Amazon Reta* Nr3km8as2 Ofc Supplies 9.99$             9.99$               10-12-5306
7/18/2025 Amazon Reta* Xb1ns0zq3 TP for Comm Bldg 38.55$           38.55$             10-10-5311
7/29/2025 Concentra Inc Brown & Edge Drug Screen 172.00$        172.00$          10-11-5182
7/30/2025 In *honest Maids Llc July Cleaning of Bldgs. 975.00$        975.00$          10-10-5227

8/1/2025 Hampton Inns Hampton Inn - Barner - Credit will be Follow - Taxes w      357.12$        357.12$          10-10-5503
Debit Total USD 2,337.37$    
Credit Total USD (491.40)$      
Total USD 1,845.97$    

Kenny Snider

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/4/2025 Taco Johns 9558 Lunch for the crew during the safety meeting 85.37$           85.37$             40-40-5182
7/10/2025 Dollar-General #9148 Coffee 29.90$           29.90$             40-40-5312
7/17/2025 Menards 3335 Lab and shop supplies 182.46$        182.46$          40-40-5312

8/1/2025 Harbor Freight Tools 76 Trash pump 289.99$        289.99$          40-40-5430



Debit Total USD 587.72$        
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 587.72$        

Leland Liese

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/3/2025 Tractor Supply #2851 Nutrition needed for the OPD K9s 137.98$        137.98$          10-11-5323
Debit Total USD 137.98$        
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 137.98$        

Lindsey Adams

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/2/2025 Amazon Mark* N30p65ld1 Equipment for water aerobics 101.68$        101.68$          50-51-5421
7/14/2025 Samsclub.Com Concession supplies 142.74$        142.74$          50-53-5312
7/14/2025 Samsclub.Com Concession supplies 400.68$        400.68$          50-53-5312
7/17/2025 Amazon Reta* Nh0zh8w90 Returned baseball (57.17)$         (57.17)$           50-52-5353
7/21/2025 Samsclub.Com Concession supplies 416.96$        416.96$          50-53-5312

Debit Total USD 1,062.06$    
Credit Total USD (57.17)$         
Total USD 1,004.89$    

Shawna Davis

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        328.64$          10-10-5302
7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        199.21$          10-11-5302
7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        15.31$             10-12-5302
7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        61.24$             10-14-5301



7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        15.31$             10-17-5302
7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        76.64$             20-20-5302
7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        61.24$             30-30-5302
7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        61.24$             40-40-5302
7/2/2025 Google *gsuite_cityofo Monthly GMAIL Expense 956.80$        137.97$          50-50-5302
7/7/2025 Evogov, Inc. Monthly Website Subscription 150.00$        21.48$             10-10-5403
7/7/2025 Evogov, Inc. Monthly Website Subscription 150.00$        21.42$             10-11-5403
7/7/2025 Evogov, Inc. Monthly Website Subscription 150.00$        21.42$             10-12-5403
7/7/2025 Evogov, Inc. Monthly Website Subscription 150.00$        21.42$             20-20-5403
7/7/2025 Evogov, Inc. Monthly Website Subscription 150.00$        21.42$             30-30-5403
7/7/2025 Evogov, Inc. Monthly Website Subscription 150.00$        21.42$             40-40-5403
7/7/2025 Evogov, Inc. Monthly Website Subscription 150.00$        21.42$             10-17-5403

7/24/2025 Amazon Mktpl Community Building Refrigerator Handle Replaceme 49.96$           49.96$             10-16-5425
Debit Total USD 1,156.76$    
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 1,156.76$    

Troy Woutzke

Posting Date Supplier Reason for Expense  Amount  Line Amount GL Account

7/3/2025 Bates City Bar-B-Q Department Head meeting. 53.64$           53.64$             20-20-5181
7/20/2025 The Home Depot #3006 Material to build new service temporaries. 146.66$        146.66$          20-20-5312
7/20/2025 The Home Depot #3024 Material to build new service temporaries. 499.06$        499.06$          20-20-5312
7/23/2025 Homedepot.Com Meter base and outlet panels for building new tempo 2,863.90$    2,863.90$      20-20-5312

Debit Total USD 3,563.26$    
Credit Total USD -$                
Total USD 3,563.26$    
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My Budget Report
City of Odessa MO Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2025-2026 Period Ending: 07/31/2025

Fiscal
AcƟvity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

AcƟvityDepartment
Current 

Total Budget
Original 

Total Budget
Percent

Remaining

Fund: 10 - General
00 - Non-Departmental 976,846.62260,127.404,354,692.00 4,354,692.00 -3,377,845.38 77.57%
10 - City Hall 643,918.8272,748.061,508,273.00 1,508,273.00 864,354.18 57.31%
11 - Police Department 546,623.25162,140.431,603,983.00 1,603,983.00 1,057,359.75 65.92%
12 - Municipal Court 19,922.223,338.8850,894.00 50,894.00 30,971.78 60.86%
14 - Street Department 183,793.8962,123.88562,223.00 562,223.00 378,429.11 67.31%
15 - Solid Waste Management 117,469.4439,156.48478,288.00 478,288.00 360,818.56 75.44%
16 - Community Building 6,405.55918.8318,600.00 18,600.00 12,194.45 65.56%
17 - Community Development & Planning 33,118.899,964.78123,731.00 123,731.00 90,612.11 73.23%
21 - Building Maintenance 1,694.46554.024,700.00 4,700.00 3,005.54 63.95%
22 - Reservoir 198.000.004,000.00 4,000.00 3,802.00 95.05%

-576,297.90-90,817.960.00 0.00 -576,297.90Fund: 10 - General Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 11 - ARPA
00 - Non-Departmental 3,722.35891.001,636,170.00 1,636,170.00 -1,632,447.65 99.77%
55 - ARPA 144,208.17143,178.171,636,170.00 1,636,170.00 1,491,961.83 91.19%

-140,485.82-142,287.170.00 0.00 -140,485.82Fund: 11 - ARPA  Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 20 - Electric
20 - Electric Department 208,954.86153,319.040.00 0.00 208,954.86 0.00%

208,954.86153,319.040.00 0.00 208,954.86Fund: 20 - Electric Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 30 - Water
30 - Water Department 2,540.00-33,077.360.00 0.00 2,540.00 0.00%

2,540.00-33,077.360.00 0.00 2,540.00Fund: 30 - Water Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 40 - Waste Water
40 - Waste Water Department -184,067.4258,511.850.00 0.00 -184,067.42 0.00%

-184,067.4258,511.850.00 0.00 -184,067.42Fund: 40 - Waste Water Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 50 - Parks
50 - Park Department -3,028.92-1,839.92164,812.00 164,812.00 -167,840.92 101.84%
51 - Swimming Pool -119,692.55-57,149.82-196,225.00 -196,225.00 76,532.45 39.00%
52 - Park Programs -12,208.515,415.6317,220.00 17,220.00 -29,428.51 170.90%
53 - Park Concessions 12,522.83565.8514,193.00 14,193.00 -1,670.17 11.77%

-122,407.15-53,008.260.00 0.00 -122,407.15Fund: 50 - Parks Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 51 - Parks Development
54 - Park Development 10,700.00-500.000.00 0.00 10,700.00 0.00%

10,700.00-500.000.00 0.00 10,700.00Fund: 51 - Parks Development  Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 70 - Capital Improvement Sales Tax
70 - Capital Improvement Sales Tax -152,132.82-24,306.170.00 0.00 -152,132.82 0.00%

-152,132.82-24,306.170.00 0.00 -152,132.82Fund: 70 - Capital Improvement Sales Tax Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Fund: 80 - Transportation Tax
80 - Transportation Sales 49,550.93-38,709.520.00 0.00 49,550.93 0.00%

49,550.93-38,709.520.00 0.00 49,550.93Fund: 80 - Transportation Tax Surplus (Deficit): 0.00%

Report Surplus (Deficit): -170,875.55 -903,645.320.00 0.00 -903,645.32 0.00%



My Budget Report For Fiscal: 2025-2026 Period Ending: 07/31/2025
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Fund Summary

Fiscal
AcƟvity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

AcƟvity
Current 

Total Budget
Original 

Total Budget

10 - General -576,297.90-90,817.960.00 0.00 -576,297.90
11 - ARPA -140,485.82-142,287.170.00 0.00 -140,485.82
20 - Electric 208,954.86153,319.040.00 0.00 208,954.86
30 - Water 2,540.00-33,077.360.00 0.00 2,540.00
40 - Waste Water -184,067.4258,511.850.00 0.00 -184,067.42
50 - Parks -122,407.15-53,008.260.00 0.00 -122,407.15
51 - Parks Development 10,700.00-500.000.00 0.00 10,700.00
70 - Capital Improvement Sales Tax -152,132.82-24,306.170.00 0.00 -152,132.82
80 - Transportation Tax 49,550.93-38,709.520.00 0.00 49,550.93

Report Surplus (Deficit): -170,875.55 -903,645.320.00 0.00 -903,645.32



 

ENDS 07.01.2026

Source:		UMB ‐4810
April May June July August September October November December January February March Total

Principal 4,666.67$           4,666.67$        4,666.67$           -$                     14,000.01$         
Principal (Credits) (4,666.67)$          (4,666.67)$      (4,666.67)$          (14,000.01)$        
Interest 105.00$              105.00$           105.00$              -$                     315.00$              
Interest (Credits) (105.00)$             (105.00)$          (105.00)$             -$                     (315.00)$             
Admin Fees UMB -$                     
Admin Fees DNR -$                     

TOTAL PAYMENT -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Principal Balance 112,000.00$       

 

ENDS 07.01.2043 (extended in 2022 for annual debt payment relief)

Source:		UMB
April May June July August September October November December January February March Total

Principal 70,000.00$         70,000.00$         
Interest 22,706.65$         22,706.65$         
Interest (Credits) (666.88)$             (666.88)$             
Admin Fees UMB -$                     
Admin Fees DNR -$                     

TOTAL PAYMENT -$                     -$                 92,039.77$         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     92,039.77$         
Principal Balance 6,360,000.00$   6,290,000.00$   

(91,946.45)$        

Northwest	Plant	Construction

2025-26 FY Required Payments on Long Term Debts
2005	Series	Loan	($1M)	‐	Waste	Water	Fund

Extend	Sewer	Service
Account:	

40‐40‐5545/5546/5571

2014	Series	SRF	Loan	($8M)	‐	Waste	Water	Fund

Account:	
40‐40‐5549/5550/5572

Pg 1 of 4 Z:\Bonds\Bond Payment Tracking\Long Term Debt Payment Summary - Tracking 2025-26



ENDS 01.01.2044 (extended in 2022 for annual debt payment relief)

Source:		UMB
April May June July August September October November December January February March Total

Principal 26,050.00$         26,050.00$         
Interest 7,286.00$           7,286.00$           
Interest (Credits) (242.35)$             (242.35)$             
Admin Fees UMB -$                     
Admin Fees DNR -$                     

TOTAL PAYMENT -$                     -$                 33,093.65$         -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     33,093.65$         
Principal Balance 2,383,100.00$   2,357,050.00$   

 
781.58$              (32,967.50)$        

ENDS 09.01.2030

April May June July August September October November December January February March Total
Total Principal -$                 -$                     
Total Interest -$                     
Total Admin Fees -$                     

TOTAL PAYMENT -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Principal Balance 2,065,000.00$   2,065,000.00$   

Due 9/1 Due 3/1
PORTION TO WASTE 
WATER FUND - 88.83%  

Share Principal -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Share Interest -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Share Admin Fees -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     

TOTAL WATER FUND -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     

PORTION TO WATER 
FUND - 11.17%  

Share Principal -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Share Interest -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Share Admin Fees -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     

TOTAL ELECTRIC 
FUND -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                      

2015	Series	SRF	Loan	($3M)	‐	Waste	Water	Fund
Westside	Interceptor,	SE	Lagoon,	Emergency	Filters

Account:	
40‐40‐5551/5552/5573

2017	Series	(Refinance	of	2011	COP	$2.065M)	‐	Water/Waste	Water	
Project	cost	allocation	88.83%	waste	water,	11.17%	water	

					Source:		
					Security	Bank	of	KC

Account:	
40‐40‐5555/5556/5556

30‐30‐5555/5556
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ENDS 12.01.2028

Source:  
Capital One

April May June July August September October November December January February March Total
Total Principal -$                     
Total Interest 7,325.00$           7,325.00$           
Total Admin Fees -$                     

TOTAL PAYMENT -$                     -$                 7,325.00$           -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     7,325.00$           
Principal Balance 586,000.00$       586,000.00$   586,000.00$       586,000.00$   586,000.00$   586,000.00$       586,000.00$   586,000.00$   586,000.00$   586,000.00$   586,000.00$     586,000.00$       

WATER FUND - 61%  
Share Principal -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Share Interest -$                     -$                 4,468.25$           -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     4,468.25$           
Share Admin Fees -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     

TOTAL WATER FUND -$                     -$                 4,468.25$           -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     4,468.25$           

ELECTRIC FUND - 39%  
Share Principal -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Share Interest -$                     -$                 2,856.75$           -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     2,856.75$           
Share Admin Fees -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     

TOTAL ELECTRIC 
FUND -$                     -$                 2,856.75$           -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     2,856.75$            

ENDS 05.02.2029

April May June July August September October November December January February March Total
Total Principal 65,000.00$     -$                 65,000.00$         
Total Interest 5,220.00$        5,220.00$           
Total Admin Fees -$                     

TOTAL PAYMENT -$                     70,220.00$     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     70,220.00$         
Principal Balance 348,000.00$       283,000.00$   283,000.00$       

ENDS 08.18.2028

April May June July August September October November December January February March Total
Total Principal 12,000.00$         12,000.00$     12,000.00$         13,000.00$     13,000.00$     62,000.00$         
Total Interest 1,666.83$           1,630.33$        1,593.83$           1,577.33$        1,517.79$        7,986.11$           
Total Admin Fees 589.89$              590.84$           576.85$              577.47$           570.23$           2,905.28$           
Total Adjustments 
(interest) (111.78)$             (111.78)$          (111.78)$             (121.10)$          (121.10)$          (577.54)$             

TOTAL PAYMENT 14,144.94$         14,109.39$     14,058.90$         15,033.70$     14,966.92$     -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     72,313.85$         

2019	Series	Muni	Lease	for	Asset	Replacement	Program	($642k)	- 
Capital Improvement Fund 

2018	Series	Municipal	Lease	for	AMI	System	($1.335M	debt)	‐	
Project cost allocation 61% water, 39% electric

Account:	
30‐30‐5557/5558/5640
20‐20‐5557/5558/5640

Source:		First	National	Bank	‐	
Louisburg,	Ks

Account:	
70‐70‐5611

MPUA	MAMU	Lease	Series	2008A	($2,300,000)	
Aquatic	Center Account: 

50-51-5619/5620/5621Source:		UMB
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Principal Balance 536,000.00$       524,000.00$   512,000.00$       499,000.00$   486,000.00$   486,000.00$       486,000.00$   486,000.00$   486,000.00$   486,000.00$   486,000.00$     486,000.00$       

ENDS 03.01.2042

April May June July August September October November December January February March Total
Total Principal -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     
Total Interest -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     
Total Admin Fees -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Total Adjustments 
(interest) -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     

TOTAL PAYMENT -$                     -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                     -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                     -$                     
Principal Balance 1,058,000.00$   1,058,000.00$   1,058,000.00$   

PAID 

CITY	HALL	‐APPR	LSE	REAL	PROPERTY	($1,200,000.00)	
Source:		CAPITAL	ONE	PUBLIC	

FUNDING Account: 70-70-5622

2010C	Series	GO	Bond	($1.265M)	‐	Debt	Service	Fund	
Ritchie	Bros	NID Account: 

60-60-5568Source:		UMB
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2025-26 APR  MAY  JUNE  JULY  AUG 
ODESSA - 200 - CITY 1.00%  $     39,084    $      62,149    $         61,416    $       69,053    $       59,927  
ODESSA - 210 - CAPITAL IMP 0.50%  $     19,902    $      31,075    $         30,708    $       34,527    $       29,964  
ODESSA - 215 - CITY TRANSP 0.50%  $     19,902    $      31,075    $         30,708    $       34,527    $       29,964  
ODESSA - 260 - PARKS 0.1250%  $       4,975    $        7,769    $           7,677    $         8,632    $         7,491  
ODESSA - 261 - PARKS 0.3750%  $     14,927     $      23,306     $         23,031     $       25,895     $       22,473  

Month Total   $     98,790     $    155,373     $       153,539     $     172,633     $     149,817  
YTD Total   $     98,790     $    254,163     $       407,702     $     580,335     $     730,153  

Month Difference from PrYr  $   (36,295)   $     (21,015)   $         20,626    $       59,217    $      (56,788) 
YTD Difference from PrYr  $   (36,295)   $     (57,310)   $       (36,684)   $       22,533    $      (34,255) 
% Change from PrYr month -27%  -12%  16%  52%  -27% 
YTD % Change  -27%  -18%  -8%  4%  -4% 
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CLIENT SATISFACTION OFFER 

Merchant Name or DBA Name: CITY OF ODESSA (“Merchant”) 

Merchant ID(s): 8788240066112, 8788240066113, 8788240092399 (“MID” or “MIDs”) 

Date: 7/31/2025 

Global Payments Direct, Inc. (“Global Direct”), a Global Payments company, values its merchant clients and strives to 
create mutually beneficial, long-term relationships with them. Accepting this offer will modify your Card Services 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Global Direct in accordance with the adjustments listed below (the “Amended 
Rates”). Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given in the Agreement. 

Amended Rates 
Credit Discount Rate 1.45% Per item $0.75 
Debit Discount Rate 1.45% Per item $0.75 
Risk Assessment Fee 0.35% Per item $0.35 
Settlement Funding Fee 0.15% Per item $0.15 
Please see the Rate Analysis for full details. 
Contract Term 

The Amended Rates will become effective on the first day of the calendar month of the Effective Date so long as this 
Client Satisfaction Offer is executed and received by Global Direct by the 15th of the calendar month, otherwise the 
Amended Rates will be effective on the first day of the calendar month following the Effective Date. The Amended Rates 
remain subject to change as per the terms and conditions of the Agreement. All fees, rates, charges and other terms not 
otherwise revised per this Client Satisfaction Offer remain in full force and effect. 

Merchant agrees to extend the term of the Agreement for 24 months from the last date of execution below (the 
“Effective Date”).  This time period will be referred to as the “Extended Term”.  At the expiration of the Extended 
Term, the Agreement will automatically renew as per the terms of the Agreement for successive one-year periods (each 
a “Renewal Term”, and collectively with the Initial Term and the Extended Term, the “Term”). 

Merchant agrees to pay the following account closure fees per terminating MID upon early termination of the 
Agreement: (a) $500.00 if terminated with more than 12 months remaining in the Term; or (b) $250.00 if terminated 
with 12 or fewer months remaining in the Term, or such portion of the foregoing as may be permitted by applicable 
law. 

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged. This Client Satisfaction Offer and the details 

contained herein are confidential and may not be disclosed, displayed, or otherwise transmitted to any third party 

except to attorneys, accountants or other professional advisers as may be necessary to effect the purposes of this letter 

between the parties.  By signing below, each party acknowledges that it has carefully read and fully understood this 

amendment, and each agrees to be bound by the terms of this amendment. 

 

GLOBAL PAYMENTS DIRECT, INC.  CITY OF ODESSA 

Signed By:_____________________________________________________ Signed By: ______________________________________________________ 

Name: _________________________________________________________ Name: __________________________________________________________ 

Title: __________________________________________________________ Title: ____________________________________________________________ 

Date:      ________________ Date: ____________________________________________________________ 

      

 

  



Rate review based on processing month:

Rates subject to change. 
3 Locations Review 7/30/2025

x

Card Charge # $ % Per Total % Per Total

Type Type Trans Sales Disc Item Fees Disc Item Fees Savings

AMEX Qualified 1 326.00 3.270% 1.5000 12.16 1.450% 0.7500 5.48 6.68

AMEX Qualified 7 437.52 2.409% 0.7014 15.45 1.450% 0.7500 11.59 3.86

AMEX Qualified 17 6,303.61 3.239% 1.4459 228.75 1.450% 0.7500 104.15 124.60

AMEX Qualified 1 6,476.21 3.270% 1.5000 213.27 1.450% 0.7500 94.66 118.61

DISC Qualified 14 2,903.64 3.270% 1.5000 115.95 1.450% 0.7500 52.60 63.35

DDBT Qualified 1 336.62 3.271% 1.5000 12.51 1.450% 0.7500 5.63 6.88

DDBT Qualified 1 88.17 3.266% 1.5000 4.38 1.450% 0.7500 2.03 2.35

DSPM Qualified 14 3,664.22 3.270% 1.5000 140.82 1.450% 0.7500 63.63 77.19

DSPP Qualified 4 948.41 3.270% 1.5000 37.01 1.450% 0.7500 16.75 20.26

VISA Qualified 10 2,218.13 3.270% 1.5000 87.53 1.450% 0.7500 39.66 47.87

VIBS Qualified 1 379.04 3.269% 1.5000 13.89 1.450% 0.7500 6.25 7.64

VIBS Qualified 5 1,108.22 3.120% 1.0000 39.58 1.450% 0.7500 19.82 19.76

VIBS Qualified 14 5,561.51 3.135% 0.6543 183.51 1.450% 0.7500 91.14 92.37

VIBS Qualified 1 500.00 3.270% 1.5000 17.85 1.450% 0.7500 8.00 9.85

VIBS Qualified 7 1,150.15 2.999% 0.8329 40.32 1.450% 0.7500 21.93 18.39

VIBS Qualified 2 512.75 3.107% 0.8750 17.68 1.450% 0.7500 8.93 8.75

VDBT Qualified 160 30,725.00 3.267% 1.4922 1,242.63 1.450% 0.7500 565.51 677.12

VDBT Qualified 66 25,085.65 3.270% 1.5000 919.30 1.450% 0.7500 413.24 506.06

VDBT Qualified 21 4,228.22 3.235% 1.2810 163.69 1.450% 0.7500 77.06 86.63

VDBT Qualified 212 55,100.07 3.265% 1.4854 2,114.02 1.450% 0.7500 957.95 1,156.07

VDBT Qualified 1 15.00 2.200% 0.5800 0.91 1.450% 0.7500 0.97 -0.06

VISP Qualified 92 29,846.90 3.259% 1.4457 1,105.69 1.450% 0.7500 501.78 603.91

VINF Qualified 1 156.75 3.273% 1.5000 6.63 1.450% 0.7500 3.02 3.61

VINF Qualified 25 6,130.19 3.270% 1.5000 237.96 1.450% 0.7500 107.64 130.32

VIPP Qualified 29 4,727.52 3.252% 1.4569 196.01 1.450% 0.7500 90.30 105.71

VIPP Qualified 9 3,297.69 3.270% 1.5000 121.33 1.450% 0.7500 54.57 66.76

VIPP Qualified 1 6.37 3.297% 1.5000 1.71 1.450% 0.7500 0.84 0.87

VIPP Qualified 2 594.90 3.269% 1.5000 22.45 1.450% 0.7500 10.13 12.32

VISG Qualified 14 3,499.36 3.270% 1.5000 135.43 1.450% 0.7500 61.24 74.19

VIBT Qualified 16 3,286.05 3.094% 0.9531 116.91 1.450% 0.7500 59.65 57.26

VBT5 Qualified 8 6,962.15 3.187% 0.4063 225.12 1.450% 0.7500 106.95 118.17

VIBE Qualified 8 1,011.72 2.707% 0.6038 32.22 1.450% 0.7500 20.67 11.55

VISB Qualified 3 472.49 3.094% 1.0833 17.87 1.450% 0.7500 9.10 8.77

MC Qualified 6 601.64 3.269% 1.5000 28.67 1.450% 0.7500 13.22 15.45

MCBS Qualified 4 1,508.56 3.215% 1.1875 53.25 1.450% 0.7500 24.87 28.38

MCBS Qualified 16 3,398.42 3.124% 1.0313 122.66 1.450% 0.7500 61.28 61.38

MCBS Qualified 18 3,400.14 3.135% 1.1200 126.77 1.450% 0.7500 62.80 63.97

MCBS Qualified 24 4,297.28 3.121% 1.0971 160.43 1.450% 0.7500 80.31 80.12

MDBT Qualified 104 39,916.85 3.270% 1.5000 1,461.28 1.450% 0.7500 656.79 804.49

MDBT Qualified 251 48,981.74 3.256% 1.4361 1,955.09 1.450% 0.7500 898.49 1056.60

MDBT Qualified 332 86,050.28 3.268% 1.4907 3,307.43 1.450% 0.7500 1,496.73 1,810.70

MCWC Qualified 5 815.92 3.270% 1.5000 34.18 1.450% 0.7500 15.58 18.60

MWEL Qualified 56 14,602.85 3.270% 1.5000 561.51 1.450% 0.7500 253.74 307.77

MCEC Qualified 6 1,424.86 3.270% 1.5000 55.59 1.450% 0.7500 25.16 30.43

MBWE Qualified 1 5,838.11 3.270% 1.5000 192.41 1.450% 0.7500 85.40 107.01

MCPP Qualified 5 1,698.21 3.270% 1.5000 63.03 1.450% 0.7500 28.37 34.66

MCPP Qualified 16 2,788.32 3.270% 1.5000 115.18 1.450% 0.7500 52.43 62.75

MCHV Qualified 4 997.12 3.186% 1.1875 36.52 1.450% 0.7500 17.46 19.06

MBL5 Qualified 9 2,500.42 3.171% 1.0833 89.03 1.450% 0.7500 43.01 46.02

VDBT Return 1 20.00 2.200% 0.5800 1.02 1.450% 0.0000 0.29 0.73

A/V/M/D Interchange 1,625 426,880.95 0.000% 0.0000 0.00 0.000% 0.0000 3,506.00 -3506.00

DISC GP Fee - Digital Investment Fee 34 7,941.06 0.010% 0.0000 0.79 0.010% 0.0000 0.79 0.00
DISC GP Fee - Network Access Fee 34 7,941.06 0.000% 0.0026 0.09 0.000% 0.0025 0.09 0.00

VISA GP FEE - VISA Credit Voucher - Debit 1 20.00 0.000% 0.0200 0.02 0.000% 0.0155 0.02 0.00

AMEX GP Fee - Assessment 26 13,543.34 0.199% 0.0000 26.95 0.165% 0.0000 22.35 4.60

DISC GP Fee - Assessment 34 7,941.06 0.210% 0.0000 16.68 0.140% 0.0000 11.12 5.56

VISA Credit GP Fee - Assessment 197 60,753.47 0.224% 0.0000 136.09 0.140% 0.0000 85.05 51.04

VISA Debit GP Fee - Assessment 511 125,822.36 0.224% 0.0000 281.84 0.130% 0.0000 163.57 118.27

MC GP Fee - Assessment 855 211,913.25 0.204% 0.0000 432.29 0.140% 0.0000 296.68 135.61

MC GP Fee - License Fee 857 218,820.72 0.020% 0.0000 43.76 0.020% 0.0000 43.76 0.00

MC GP Fee - High Ticket Assessment 2 6,907.47 0.250% 0.0000 17.27 0.150% 0.0000 10.36 6.91

AMEX GP Fee - Card Not Present Fee 26 13,543.34 0.300% 0.0000 40.63 0.300% 0.0000 40.63 0.00

Fee GP Fee - Risk Assessment Fee 1,625 426,880.95 0.395% 0.3796 2,305.01 0.350% 0.3500 2,062.83 242.18

Fee Settlement Funding Fee 1,625 426,880.95 0.198% 0.1889 1,150.38 0.150% 0.1500 884.07 266.31

Surcharge NQS-AMEX Prepaid (All MCCs) Tier 2 ($75.01 - $1,000.00) 1 326.00 0.70% 0.0000 2.28 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 2.28

Surcharge NQS-AMEX Government ($100.01 - ≤ $3000.00) 17 6,303.61 0.70% 0.0000 44.12 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 44.12

Surcharge NQS-AMEX Government (> $3000.00) 1 6,476.21 4.10% 0.0000 265.52 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 265.52

Surcharge NQS-VIBS Commercial Prepaid Card – Card Not Present – Retail                      1 379.04 4.10% 0.0000 15.54 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 15.54

Surcharge NQS-VIBS Business Card – Tier 1 – Card Not Present/ Product 1 5 1,108.22 4.10% 0.0000 45.44 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 45.44

Surcharge NQS-VIBS Corporate/Purchasing Card – Card Not Present 14 5,561.51 4.10% 0.0000 228.03 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 228.03

Surcharge NQS-VIBS Business Card – Tier 1 –Product 2 1 500.00 4.10% 0.0000 20.50 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 20.50

Surcharge NQS-VIBS Business Debit Card – Card Not Present 2 512.75 4.10% 0.0000 21.02 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 21.02

Surcharge NQS-VINF Electronic / Non-Qualified 1 156.75 4.10% 0.0000 6.43 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 6.43

Surcharge NQS-VIPP CPS / Retail 2 594.90 4.10% 0.0000 24.39 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 24.39

Surcharge NQS-VIBT Card Not Present / Product 1 16 3,286.05 4.10% 0.0000 134.73 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 134.73

Surcharge NQS-VBT5 Card Not Present / Product 1 8 6,962.15 4.10% 0.0000 285.45 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 285.45

Surcharge NQS-VIBE Card Not Present / Product 1 8 1,011.72 4.10% 0.0000 41.48 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 41.48

Surcharge NQS-VISB Card Not Present / Product 1 3 472.49 4.10% 0.0000 19.37 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 19.37

Surcharge NQS-MCBS Data Rate 2 – Level 1 / Business Core Credit 4 1,508.56 4.10% 0.0000 61.85 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 61.85

Surcharge NQS-MCBS Data Rate 2 – Large Market Credit 16 3,398.42 4.10% 0.0000 139.34 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 139.34

Surcharge NQS-MCBS Data Rate 2 – Business Debit 24 4,297.28 4.10% 0.0000 176.19 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 176.19

Surcharge NQS-MBWE Data Rate 2 1 5,838.11 4.10% 0.0000 239.36 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 239.36

Surcharge NQS-MBL5 Data Rate 2 9 2,500.42 4.10% 0.0000 102.52 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 102.52

AMEX Auth Fees 49 0.00 0.00% 0.7980 39.10 0.00% 0.7500 36.75 2.35

AMEX Auth Fees 3 0.00 0.00% 0.8500 2.55 0.00% 0.7500 2.25 0.30

DISC Auth Fees 65 0.00 0.00% 0.8500 55.25 0.00% 0.7500 48.75 6.50

DISC Auth Fees 2 0.00 0.00% 0.8500 1.70 0.00% 0.7500 1.50 0.20

VISA Auth Fees 4 0.00 0.00% 0.8500 3.40 0.00% 0.7500 3.00 0.40

VISA Auth Fees 1,235 0.00 0.00% 0.8218 1,014.90 0.00% 0.7500 926.25 88.65

VISA Auth Fees 115 0.00 0.00% 0.8500 97.75 0.00% 0.7500 86.25 11.50

MC Auth Fees 2 0.00 0.00% 0.8500 1.70 0.00% 0.7500 1.50 0.20

MC Auth Fees 1,508 0.00 0.00% 0.8337 1,257.15 0.00% 0.7500 1,131.00 126.15

MC Auth Fees 137 0.00 0.00% 0.8500 116.45 0.00% 0.7500 102.75 13.70

DISC GP Fee - Network Auth Fee 35 0.00 0.00% 0.0191 0.67 0.00% 0.0190 0.67 0.01

DISC GP Fee - Address Verification Fee 65 0.00 0.00% 0.0051 0.33 0.00% 0.0050 0.33 0.01

VISA GP Fee - Account Verification Fees 1,223 0.00 0.00% 0.0010 1.22 0.00% 0.0010 1.22 0.00

MC GP Fee - DGL MAX 9 20,009.26 0.00% 0.4000 3.60 0.00% 0.2000 1.80 1.80

VISA GP Fee - APF Fees 198 0.00 0.00% 0.0195 3.86 0.00% 0.0195 3.86 0.00

VISA Debit GP Fee - APF Fees 584 0.00 0.00% 0.0155 9.05 0.00% 0.0155 9.05 0.00

MC GP Fee - NABU 938 0.00 0.00% 0.0195 18.30 0.00% 0.0195 18.29 0.01

MC GP Fee - CVC2 Fee 1,261 0.00 0.00% 0.0000 0.00 0.00% 0.0025 3.15 -3.15

Fee GP Fee - MC Monthly Fee 3 0.00 0.00% 3.7500 11.25 0.00% 1.2500 3.75 7.50

Statement Totals 1,625 426,880.95 - 26,116.51 17,866.58 -

- - - x - - - -

- -

- SAVINGS FROM QUARTERLY FEES 0.00 -

- -

CURRENT RATES PROPOSED RATES

CITY OF ODESSA-GENERAL - ODESSA, MO        
June-25

This is a summary of proposed rate and fee changes
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

 

 

To the Honorable Mayor and 

 Members of the Board of Aldermen 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

Opinions 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, and each major fund of the City of Odessa, Missouri, as of and for the year ended March 31, 

2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Odessa, 

Missouri's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major 

fund of the City of Odessa, Missouri, as of March 31, 2024, and the respective changes in financial 

position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Basis for Opinions 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are 

further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 

report.  We are required to be independent of the City of Odessa, Missouri, and to meet our other ethical 

responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinions. 

 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 

the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 

or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Odessa, Missouri's 

ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date including 

any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives, are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance 

and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 

standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may include collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 

that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 

based on the financial statements. 

 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 

Auditing Standards, we: 

 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  

Such procedures including examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amount and 

disclosures in the financial statements. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Odessa, Missouri's internal control.  Accordingly, 

no such opinion is expressed. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Odessa, Missouri's ability to 

continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 

matters that we identified during the audit. 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 

discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules, schedule of employer's contributions, and 

schedule of changes in net pension liability as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement 

the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,  

is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 

historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 

of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
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information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 

and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express 

an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 

with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 31, 2025, 

on our consideration of the City of Odessa, Missouri's internal control over financial reporting and on our 

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 

other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 

control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Odessa, Missouri's internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overland Park, Kansas 

July 31, 2025 
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The City of Odessa, Missouri, (the City) offers readers this narrative overview and analysis of the 

financial activities of the City for the year ended March 31, 2024.  The City of Odessa, Missouri, 

reports the annual financial statements in accordance with the guidelines prescribed in the 

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34.  We encourage readers to 

consider the information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The assets of the City of Odessa, Missouri, exceeded its liabilities at the close of the year ending 

March 31, 2024, by $35,818,702.  Of this amount, $12,923,649 represents unrestricted net assets 

and may be used to fund ongoing obligations.  Total net position increased by $1,086,608.  The City 

serviced all long-term obligations as planned.   

 

As of the close of the year ending March 31, 2024, the City of Odessa, Missouri's combined 

governmental fund balances totaled $5,945,090.  This is an increase from the previous year fund 

balance by $386,006.  

 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

This discussion and analysis is provided as an introduction to the basic financial statements.  The 

basic financial statements consist of three components:  government-wide financial statements, 

fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains required 

supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 

statements themselves. 

 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 

the City's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

 

The statement of net position presents all of the City's assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows 

of resources, with the difference between them reported as net position.  Net position is an important 

measure of the City's overall financial health.  The increases and decreases in net position can be 

monitored to determine whether the City's financial position is improving or deteriorating. 

 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during 

the most recent fiscal period.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event 

giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Thus, revenues 

and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 

fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused paid time off). 

 

The government-wide financial statements report functions of the City that are principally supported 

by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) separate from other functions 

that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges 

(business-type activities).  The governmental activities for the City include general government, public 

works and streets, solid waste, public safety, planning and development, and parks and recreation.  

The business-type activities for the City include the electric, waterworks, and waste water systems. 

http://position.net/


CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 

 

5 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City uses fund accounting to ensure compliance 

with finance-related legal requirements.  These funds are divided into two categories:  governmental 

funds and proprietary funds. 

 

Governmental Funds 

 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 

activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide 

financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and 

outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the  

end of the audit period.  Such information may be useful in evaluating the City's near-term financing 

requirements. 

 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 

information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.   

By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term 

financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 

statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to  

facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

 
Proprietary Funds 

 

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same 

functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

 

The City maintains three enterprise funds.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide 

separate information for the Electric Fund, Water Fund, and Waste Water Fund. 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided 

in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

 

Other Information 

 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains certain 

required supplementary information regarding budgetary and pension information. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

 

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of the City's financial position.  As of 

March 31, 2024, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed liabilities by $35,818,702.  The 

largest portion of the City's net position, $19,200,752, reflects its net investment in capital assets 

(e.g. land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and 

infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets.  The City uses these capital 

assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 

spending.  Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 

should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources 

since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

Statement of Net Position 

 

 

3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23

Current and other assets 6,845,850    6,756,217    10,782,754   10,419,652   17,628,604  17,175,869   

Capital assets 9,818,288    9,369,602    23,998,714   25,135,727   33,817,002  34,505,329   

Total assets 16,664,138 16,125,819  34,781,468   35,555,379   51,445,606  51,681,198   

Deferred outflows
of resources 287,768       294,101        170,033        95,164           457,801        389,265        

Long-term debt 2,306,811    2,525,171    12,309,439   13,226,858   14,616,250  15,752,029   

Other liabilities 217,844       243,598        1,238,483     984,869        1,456,327     1,228,467     

Total liabilities 2,524,655    2,768,769    13,547,922   14,211,727   16,072,577  16,980,496   

Deferred inflows

of resources 12,128         278,587                               79,286           12,128          357,873        

Net investment in 

capital assets 7,511,477    6,844,431    11,689,275   11,908,869   19,200,752  18,753,300   

Restricted 2,334,579    2,589,573    1,359,722     741,931        3,694,301     3,331,504     

Unrestricted 4,569,067    3,938,560    8,354,582     8,708,730     12,923,649  12,647,290   

Total net position 14,415,123 13,372,564  21,403,579   21,359,530   35,818,702  34,732,094   

ActivitiesActivities

Governmental Business-Type

Total

 

At the end of the current audit period, the City is able to report positive balances in all categories of 

net position for the government as a whole. 

 

The City's combined net position during the audit period increased $1,086,608.  Overall governmental 

activities expenses increased by $1,042,559 and the business-type activities increased by $44,049. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 

Changes in Net Position 

 

The following table reflects the revenue and expenses from the City's activities for the years ended 

March 31, 2024 and 2023. 

 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

Statement of Changes in Net Position 

 

Total Total

3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23

REVENUES

Program revenues

Charges for services 1,263,024     894,481        9,230,446    8,888,893    10,493,470  9,783,374     

Operating grants and 

contributions 28,098          534,384                                                      28,098          534,384        

General revenues

Property taxes 483,055        568,502        483,055        568,502        

Sales taxes 1,737,291     1,573,239     1,737,291     1,573,239     

Franchise taxes 208,740        196,029        208,740        196,029        

Intergovernmental sources 415,079        398,839        415,079        398,839        

Other general revenues 424,642        101,722        175,248        96,492          599,890        198,214        

Total revenues 4,559,929     4,267,196     9,405,694    8,985,385    13,965,623  13,252,581  

EXPENSES

General government 1,040,584     688,784        1,040,584     688,784        

Public Safety 1,398,478     1,227,348     1,398,478     1,227,348     

Highways and Streets 732,023        642,305        732,023        642,305        

Sanitation 430,559        287,157        430,559        287,157        

Community Planning and                                               

Development 96,701          83,029          96,701          83,029          

Parks and Recreation 559,882        511,403        559,882        511,403        

Municipal court 35,587          36,376          35,587          36,376          

Interest on long-term debt 87,122          85,529          87,122          85,529          

Electric 5,275,404    4,676,151    5,275,404     4,676,151     

Water 1,424,109    1,363,682    1,424,109     1,363,682     

Waste Water                                               1,798,566    1,752,808    1,798,566     1,752,808     

Total expenses 4,380,936     3,561,931     8,498,079    7,792,641    12,879,015  11,354,572  

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 

 

Changes in Net Position (Continued) 

 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

Statement of Changes in Net Position (Continued) 

 

Total Total

3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23

Excess before transfers 178,993        705,265        907,615        1,192,744    1,086,608     1,898,009     

Transfers 863,566        817,142        (863,566)       (817,142)                                                     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,042,559     1,522,407     44,049          375,602        1,086,608     1,898,009     

NET POSITION, beginning 13,372,564  11,850,157  21,359,530  20,983,928  34,732,094  32,834,085  

NET POSITION, ending 14,415,123  13,372,564  21,403,579  21,359,530  35,818,702  34,732,094  

Activities Activities

Governmental Business-Type

 

Governmental activities total revenues increased by $292,733.  Expenses increased by $819,005 

which is approximately 23.0%. 

 

The City's business-type total revenues increased by $420,309.  Expenses increased by $705,438 

which is approximately 9.1%. 

 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS 

 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  The fund balance of the General Fund at 

March 31, 2024, was $4,728,244.  This represents an increase of $652,126. 

 

The Park Fund is the operating fund used to provide culture and recreation activities of the City.  The 

fund balance of the Park Fund at March 31, 2024, was $207,523.  This represents an increase of 

$25,534. 

 

The Transportation Sales Tax Fund and Capital Improvement Fund are used primarily for collection of  

tax and grant money for spending on capital outlay and related debt service.  The fund balance of the 

Transportation Sales Tax Fund at March 31, 2024, was $326,574.  This represents a decrease of 

$31,765.  The fund balance of the Capital Improvement Fund at March 31, 2024, was $682,749.   

This represents a decrease of $259,889.  

 

The Debt Service Fund is used for the payment of General Obligation Bonds.  The City does not 

currently have a debt service levy for property tax assessments and receives transfers from other 

funds to service debt.  For financial reporting purposes, this fund has been combined with the 

General Fund including the balance at March 31, 2024, of $37,172. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS (Continued) 

 

The enterprise funds consisting of the Electric, Water, and Waste Water Funds had a combined balance 

at March 31, 2024, of $21,403,579.  This represents an increase of $44,049. 

 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The Board of Aldermen (the Board) adopted the budget for the year ending March 31, 2024, in March 

2023.  

 

Budgetary comparison schedules are presented in the Required Supplementary Information section 

following the notes to the financial statements.  These schedules compare budgeted amounts to actual 

balances with the resulting difference displayed. 

 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

 

Capital Assets 

 

For the years ending March 31, 2024 and 2023, the City had $33,817,02 and $34,505,329, 

respectively, invested in a broad range of capital assets, including police equipment; buildings; park 

facilities; streets; and electric, water, and sewer lines.  The change in capital assets is a result of 

additions and improvements to capital assets along with depreciation expense and disposals.  See 

Note 5 to the financial statements and the table below for more detailed information on the City's 

capital assets. 

 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

 

3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23

Land 2,137,847  2,137,847  196,758        196,758        2,334,605     2,334,605     

Utility systems 9,815,040     10,228,227  9,815,040     10,228,227  

Buildings and improvements 2,514,259  2,590,257  12,951,554  13,656,762  15,465,813  16,247,019  
Equipment 842,856      811,510      1,035,362     1,053,980     1,878,218     1,865,490     

Infrastructure 3,849,524  3,572,534  3,849,524     3,572,534     

Furniture and fixtures 53,482        3,599          53,482          3,599             

Vehicles 420,320      253,855                                                    420,320        253,855        

Total 9,818,288  9,369,602  23,998,714  25,135,727  33,817,002  34,505,329  

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued) 
 

Debt Administration 
 

Balances at March 31, 2024 and 2023, are shown in the table below.  See Note 6 for additional 

information on the City's long-term debt.  
 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

Outstanding Debt 
 

3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23 3/31/24 3/31/23

Financing lease obligations 2,208,000  2,455,000  725,000        855,000        2,933,000     3,310,000     

Revenue bonds 2,449,926 2,805,000 2,449,926     2,805,000     

Loans                      9,071,300     9,499,400     9,071,300     9,499,400     

Total 2,208,000  2,455,000  12,246,226  13,159,400  14,454,226  15,614,400  

Total

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 
 

General Fund revenue for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 is projected to be $3,641,284.  This represents 

a decrease of approximately 6% (-$241,775) from the 2023-2024 actuals.  The decline is primarily 

due to reduced fund transfers to the transportation fund and the water fund.  
 

Over the course of Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and Fiscal Year 2024-2025, the school resource officer 

program has expanded as we continue to develop it.  However, revenue for FY 2024-2025 has 

fluctuated due to changes in billing and up-front capital costs, resulting in a decrease.  Additionally, 

we have observed slight declines in building permits and court costs.  
 

The City is actively planning for significant improvements to streets and public works projects that 

have been identified and prioritized.  The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget is set to cover the debt 

service requirements associated with the initial purchases of the City's 5-year Asset Replacement 

Program.  This program includes the acquisition of various assets for the departments within the 

General Fund. 
 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

General Fund Asset Replacement Program 2024 - 2025 
 

Police:  Vehicle Replacement (1 new) 45,000     

Parks:  Mower replacement 12,500     

Parks:  Pool Lounger Replacement (1 of 2) 10,000     

Parks:  Pool Slide Landing Pad 5,000       

Street:  Skid Steer 90,000     

Street:  Trailer Addition 25,000     

Admin:  Building Maintenance Truck Replacement 40,000     

Admin:  Community Building HVAC Replacement 9,000       

Total 236,500  
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES (Continued) 

 

The Fiscal Year 2024-2025 budget has projected an increase in capital outlay expenses due to 

heightened capital investments in the City’s infrastructure and capital assets.  The Electric Department 

initiated annual Capital Improvement Program (CIP) projects starting with the FY 2022-2023 budget.  

These ongoing projects include the replacement of poles and transformers, renovations to the Electric 

Plant floor and security, maintenance for the 2009 bucket truck, circuit conversions, the replacement 

of a 2011 truck, and the addition of a boom lift, with costs shared with the Wastewater Department.  

 

Additional capital projects encompass improvements to the water system in Downtown Odessa, the 

replacement of a sand filter, the acquisition of a locator and leak detector, and the installation of a 

new gate for enhanced security at the plant.  The Wastewater Department plans to replace a 2006 

service truck, add an equipment trailer, and make enhancements to the sewer collection system.  

 

These items represent a portion of the City’s CIP, which is designed to ensure adequate investment 

in the City’s systems and infrastructure to provide essential services both now and in the future. 

 

Additional budgetary highlights for next year's budget include: 

 

The budget allocates funds for a 6% salary increase for employees, as well as adjustments to the 

City’s contribution to employee health savings accounts and the addition of 8 hours of paid volunteer 

time for employees.  

 

The City has allocated nearly $150,000 from the Transportation Sales Tax Fund for various street 

improvements.  These improvements include several overlay projects, curb and gutter installations, 

and chip and seal work.  Additionally, funds from the Missouri Department of Transportation through 

the MoTAP grant have been combined with transportation sales tax dollars and electric funds to 

finance the Downtown Infrastructure project and its related expenses. 

 

Within the Capital Improvements Sales Tax Fund, monies are allocated to the capital projects listed 

above for Parks and Recreation, Streets, and Police, and Administration.  

 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

 

The City's financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the  

City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability.  Any questions regarding the report or 

request for additional information should be directed to the City Administrator or Finance Director, 

228 S. 2nd Street, Odessa, MO 64076. 

 



Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3,370,343     6,988,947     10,359,290  

Certificates of deposit 609,979        609,979        

Receivables                        

Taxes 411,769        411,769        

Accounts 131,054        597,898        728,952        

Interest 7,096             7,096             

Unbilled revenues 371,640        371,640        

Inventories 298,593        298,593        

Prepaids 51,641          41,752          93,393          

Restricted assets                        

Cash and cash equivalents 2,222,072     1,359,722     3,581,794     

Net pension asset 658,971        507,127        1,166,098     

Capital assets                        

Nondepreciable 2,137,847     196,758        2,334,605     

Depreciable, net 7,680,441     23,801,956  31,482,397  

TOTAL ASSETS 16,664,138  34,781,468  51,445,606  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related amounts 287,768        170,033        457,801        

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 

OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 16,951,906  34,951,501  51,903,407  

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 133,004        521,449        654,453        

Accrued liabilities 4,273             2,654             6,927             

Unearned revenues 35,851          35,851          

Court bonds and deposits 35,338                                 35,338          

Customer deposits 664,545        664,545        

Accrued interest payable 9,378             49,835          59,213          

Total current liabilities 217,844        1,238,483     1,456,327     

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MARCH 31, 2024

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities
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Total

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MARCH 31, 2024

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities

LIABILITIES (Continued)

Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year 352,111        1,017,939     1,370,050     

Due in more than one year 1,954,700     11,291,500  13,246,200  

Total noncurrent liabilities 2,306,811     12,309,439  14,616,250  

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,524,655     13,547,922  16,072,577  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related amounts 12,128                                 12,128          

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,536,783     13,547,922  16,084,705  

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 7,511,477     11,689,275  19,200,752  

Restricted                        

Debt service 37,172          1,166,818     1,203,990     

Renewal and replacement 192,904        192,904        

Parks and recreation 202,362        202,362        

Capital projects 1,009,323     1,009,323     

Federal programs 1,085,722     1,085,722     

Unrestricted 4,569,067     8,354,582     12,923,649  

TOTAL NET POSITION 14,415,123  21,403,579  35,818,702  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Charges

for 

Functions/programs Expenses Services Total

Primary government

Governmental activities                                               

General government 1,040,584    76,547 (964,037)       (964,037)       

Public Safety 1,398,478    379,659        (1,018,819)   (1,018,819)   

Highways and Streets 732,023        28,098 (703,925)       (703,925)       

Sanitation 430,559        520,907        90,348          90,348          

Community Planning and Development 96,701          79,514          (17,187)         (17,187)         

Parks and Recreation 559,882        206,397        (353,485)       (353,485)       

Municipal court 35,587          (35,587)         (35,587)         

Interest on long-term debt 87,122                                                (87,122)                                (87,122)         

Total governmental activities 4,380,936    1,263,024    28,098  (3,089,814)                          (3,089,814)   

Business-type activities

Electric 5,275,404    5,582,212    306,808        306,808        

Water 1,424,109    1,419,932    (4,177)           (4,177)           

Waste Water 1,798,566    2,228,302                                          429,736        429,736        

Total business-type activities 8,498,079    9,230,446                                          732,367        732,367        

Total primary government 12,879,015  10,493,470  28,098  (3,089,814)   732,367        (2,357,447)   

General revenues

Property taxes levied for general purposes 380,742        380,742        

Property taxes levied for parks and                        

recreation 102,313        102,313        

Sales tax 1,737,291 1,737,291    

Franchise taxes 208,740        208,740        

Intergovernmental sources 415,079 415,079        

Investment earnings 171,058        159,719        330,777        

Gain on sale of assets 164,099        6,878             170,977        

Other 89,485          8,651             98,136          

Total general revenues 3,268,807    175,248        3,444,055    

Transfers 863,566        (863,566)                              

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,042,559    44,049          1,086,608    

NET POSITION, beginning of year 13,372,564  21,359,530  34,732,094  

NET POSITION, end of year 14,415,123  21,403,579  35,818,702  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.                                                                      

Changes in Net Position

Governmental

Contributions Activities

Grants and

Primary Government

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Business-Type

1
4

Program

Activities

Revenues

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Net (Expense) Revenue and

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI 

Operating



General Park

Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3,370,343   3,370,343  

Receivables                     

Taxes 190,208       73,178    61,877    61,877     387,140      

Accounts 131,054       131,054      

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,122,894   136,821  277,961  684,396   2,222,072  

Prepaids 37,786         5,161                                          42,947        

TOTAL ASSETS 4,852,285   215,160  339,838  746,273   6,153,556  

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 56,144         72            13,264    63,524     133,004      

Accrued liabilities 3,902           371          4,273          

Unearned revenues 28,657         7,194       35,851        

Court bonds and deposits 35,338                                                             35,338        

Total liabilities 124,041       7,637       13,264    63,524     208,466      

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable for prepaids 37,786         5,161                                          42,947        

Restricted                                                        

Parks 202,362  202,362      

Debt service 37,172                          37,172        

Capital outlay 326,574  682,749   1,009,323  

Federal programs 1,085,722   1,085,722  

Unassigned 3,567,564                                                       3,567,564  

Total fund balances 4,728,244   207,523  326,574  682,749   5,945,090  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 4,852,285   215,160  339,838  746,273   6,153,556  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Transportation

Sales Tax

Fund

Capital

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Improvement

Fund

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI 

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

MARCH 31, 2024



Total fund balance - total governmental funds 5,945,090     

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 

in the funds:

Governmental capital assets 15,119,701  

Less accumulated depreciation (5,301,413)   9,818,288     

Certain assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported

in the funds:

Net pension asset 658,971        

Long-term amounts are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Prepaid lease interest 8,694             

Certain expenditures are not accrued in the governmental

funds, but rather are recognized as expenditures

in the governmental activities:

Interest on long-term debt (9,378)           

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and 

accrued compensated absences are not due and

payable in the current period and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds, net of unamortized premiums

and discounts. (2,306,811)   

Property taxes and other receivables not collected within

60 days of the end of the fiscal year are deferred in the

fund financial statements as they are not available to

pay current period expenditures. 24,629

Pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

are not due and payable in the current year and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred outflows of resources - pension related amounts 287,768        

Deferred inflows of resources - pension related amounts (12,128)         275,640        

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 14,415,123  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

MARCH 31, 2024
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General Park

Fund Fund Fund Total

REVENUES

Taxes 1,309,487  441,408  339,096   339,095   2,429,086   

Charges for services 855,781     206,397  1,062,178   

Licenses, permits, and fees 150,826     150,826      

Fines and forfeitures 50,020       50,020         

Intergovernmental revenue 415,079     28,098                      443,177      

Interest 91,593                       358           79,107     171,058      

Proceeds from the sale of assets 164,099     164,099      

Other 82,823       6,662                                                         89,485         

Total revenues 3,119,708  654,467  367,552   418,202                    4,559,929   

EXPENDITURES

Current

General government 789,470     618           643           790,731      

Public Safety 1,265,264                   1,265,264   

Highways and Streets 486,248     28,606     514,854      

Sanitation 430,559     430,559      

Community Planning and Development 99,219       99,219         

Municipal court 35,587       35,587         

Parks and Recreation                     485,268  485,268      

Capital outlay 148,500     433,718   503,147   1,085,365   

Debt service

Principal 140,000  107,000   247,000      

Interest and fiscal costs                     35,355                     48,286                      83,641         

Total expenditures 3,254,847  660,623  462,942   659,076                    5,037,488   

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES (135,139)    (6,156)     (95,390)    (240,874)                   (477,559)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 863,565     31,690    63,625                      (95,315)    863,565      

Transfers out (76,300)                                       (19,015)    95,315                          

Total other financing sources (uses) 787,265     31,690    63,625     (19,015)                     863,565      

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 652,126     25,534    (31,765)    (259,889)                   386,006      

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 4,076,118  181,989  358,339   942,638                    5,559,084   

FUND BALANCE, end of year 4,728,244  207,523  326,574   682,749                    5,945,090   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Capital

Improvement

Fund

Transportation

Sales Tax

Eliminations



Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 386,006      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those 

assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as

depreciation expense.  This is the difference between

capital asset additions ($1,085,365), depreciation 1,085,365   

($459,782), and net cost basis in assets sold (459,782)     

($176,897) in the current period. (176,897)     448,686      

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to 

governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term

liabilities in the statement of net position.  Repayment of debt

principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but 

the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement

of net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of 

premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,

whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the

statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these

differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related 

items:

Principal payments 247,000       

Prepaid interest amortization (895)             246,105      

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do 

not require the use of current financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the

governmental funds:

Compensated absences (28,640)        

Accrued interest (2,586)          

Pension expense (7,012)          (38,238)       

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 1,042,559  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI
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Waste

Electric Water Water Total

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,767,237  1,512,426  709,284        6,988,947     

Certificates of deposit                      609,979                             609,979        

Receivables                        

Accounts 389,747      63,942        144,209        597,898        

Interest                                           7,096             7,096             

Unbilled revenues 210,790      62,034        98,816           371,640        

Due from other funds                      310,000                             (310,000)                         

Inventories 245,033      53,560                               298,593        

Prepaid expenses 12,033        9,893          19,826                             41,752           

Total current assets 5,624,840  2,621,834  979,231        (310,000)  8,915,905     

Noncurrent assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 633,128      75,613        650,981        1,359,722     

Net pension asset 198,355      154,778      153,994        507,127        

Capital assets                        

Nondepreciable                      144,010      52,748           196,758        

Depreciable, net 2,460,911  3,763,785  17,577,260                     23,801,956   

Total noncurrent assets 3,292,394  4,138,186  18,434,983                     25,865,563   

TOTAL ASSETS 8,917,234  6,760,020  19,414,214   (310,000)  34,781,468   

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related amounts 61,621        71,558        36,854                             170,033        

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED 
 OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 8,978,855  6,831,578  19,451,068   (310,000)  34,951,501   

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

MARCH 31, 2024

1
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Eliminations



Waste

Electric Water Water Total

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities                        

Accounts payable 378,284      74,940        68,225           521,449        

Accrued liabilities 1,098          708              848                2,654             

Due to other funds                                           310,000        (310,000)                         

Current maturities of long-term debt 75,136 105,280 837,523 1,017,939     

Customer deposits 664,545                                                  664,545        

Accrued interest 3,280          5,627          40,928                             49,835           

Total current liabilities 1,122,343  186,555      1,257,524     (310,000)  2,256,422     

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 230,100      588,829      10,472,571                     11,291,500   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,352,443  775,384      11,730,095   (310,000)  13,547,922   

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED 

INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,352,443  775,384      11,730,095   (310,000)  13,547,922   

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 2,155,675  3,213,686  6,319,914     11,689,275   

Restricted for debt service 584,785                           582,033        1,166,818     

Restricted for renewal and replacement 48,343        75,613        68,948           192,904        

Unrestricted 4,837,609  2,766,895  750,078                          8,354,582     

TOTAL NET POSITION 7,626,412  6,056,194  7,720,973                       21,403,579   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Eliminations

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

MARCH 31, 2023

PROPRIETARY FUNDS



Waste

Electric Water Water Eliminations Total

REVENUES

Charges for services 5,582,212  1,419,932  2,228,302                        9,230,446     

EXPENSES

Personnel 478,019      351,388     340,603     1,170,010     

Operation and maintenance 377,318      614,644     407,369 1,399,331     

Power purchases 4,124,417                                          4,124,417     

Depreciation and amortization 286,312      437,453     783,229                           1,506,994     

Total expenses 5,266,066  1,403,485  1,531,201                        8,200,752     

OPERATING INCOME 316,146      16,447       697,101                           1,029,694     

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income 103,533      16,544       39,642       159,719        

Interest expense (9,338)         (20,563)      (231,273)    (261,174)       

Debt administrative expenses                      (61)              (36,092)      (36,153)         

Rental income                      4,099                              4,099             

Gain on sale of assets 6,878          6,878             

Miscellaneous 1,867                              2,685                                4,552             

Total nonoperating revenues 

(expenses) 102,940      19               (225,038)                          (122,079)       

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 419,086      16,466       472,063                           907,615        

2
1

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024



Waste

Electric Water Water Eliminations Total

TRANSFERS

Transfers out (410,115)    (205,786)    (247,665)                          (863,566)       

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 8,971          (189,320)    224,398                           44,049          

NET POSITION, beginning of year 7,617,441  6,245,514  7,496,575                        21,359,530  

NET POSITION, end of year 7,626,412  6,056,194  7,720,973                        21,403,579  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024



Waste

Electric Water Water Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers and others 5,589,288   1,459,091   2,267,213   9,315,592   

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,281,983)  (647,793)     (371,344)     (5,301,120)  
                      

Cash payments for employee services and benefits (469,842)     (367,154)     (354,778)     (1,191,774)  

Net cash provided by operating activities 837,463       444,144       1,541,091   2,822,698   

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers out (410,115)     (205,786)     (247,665)     (863,566)     

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for the acquisition of capital assets (123,920)     (124,973)     (146,763)     (395,656)     

Proceeds from the sale of assets 20,840         

Cash paid on long-term debt (50,700)        (79,300)        (806,332)     (936,332)     

Cash paid for debt administrative expenses                       (61)                (36,092)        (36,153)        

Interest paid on capital debt (9,926)          (21,483)        (218,177)     (249,586)     

Net cash used in capital and related

financing activities (163,706)     (225,817)     (1,207,364)  (1,617,727)  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increases in certificates of deposit                       (1,220)                                (1,220)          

Cash received from interest 103,533       16,544         39,642         159,719      

Net cash provided by investing activities 103,533       15,324         39,642         158,499      

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

2
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Enterprise Funds



Waste

Electric Water Water Total

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 367,175       27,865         125,704       520,744      

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 5,033,190   1,560,174   1,234,561   7,827,925   

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 5,400,365   1,588,039   1,360,265   8,348,669   

Unrestricted 4,767,237   1,512,426   709,284       6,988,947   

Restricted 633,128       75,613         650,981       1,359,722   

5,400,365   1,588,039   1,360,265   8,348,669   

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash                                                                                         

Provided By Operating Activities

Operating income 316,146       16,447         697,101       1,029,694   

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to                       

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 286,312       437,453       783,229       1,506,994   

Rental and miscellaneous income 1,867           4,099           2,685           8,651           

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net (8,447)          35,060         36,226         62,839         

Inventories and prepaids (14,777)        11,142         (2,926)          (6,561)          

Pension related assets, outflows, and inflows (8,458)          (15,740)        (15,660)        (39,858)        

Accounts payable 245,587       (36,521)        48,128         257,194      

Accrued liabilities (11,058)        (7,770)          (9,177)          (28,005)        

Compensated absences 16,635         (26)                1,485           18,094         

Customer deposits 13,656                                                     13,656         

Total adjustments 521,317       427,697       843,990       1,793,004   

Net cash provided by operating activities 837,463       444,144       1,541,091   2,822,698   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Enterprise Funds

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The City of Odessa, Missouri (the City), was incorporated in 1880 and covers an area of 

approximately four square miles in Lafayette County, Missouri.  The City is a fourth class city 

and operates under the aldermen-administrator form of government.  The City administrator 

is the chief administrative officer of the City.  The City provides services to its 5,600 residents 

in many areas, including law enforcement; electric, water, and sewer services; public works; 

and parks and recreation services. 

 

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting 

principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to  

government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 

standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 

principles.  The City of Odessa, Missouri, provides a range of municipal services, including 

general government administration; public safety service; recreation; street maintenance; 

and contracts for electric, waterworks, and sewerage.   

 

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of 

Statement 14 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, The Financial Reporting 

Entity, as amended by GASB Statement 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations 

are Component Units.  For financial reporting purposes, the City includes all funds, 

agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities that are controlled by or dependent  

on the City.   

 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 

Government-Wide Statements 

 

The statement of net position and statement of activities report information on the City 

as a whole.  They include all funds of the City.  The effects of interfund activity have been 

removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported 

by taxes and intergovernmental receipts, are reported separately from business-type 

activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenditures 

of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenditures  

are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program 

revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 

benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 

(2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 

requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly 

included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  The City 

does not allocate indirect costs. 
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 

considered to be a separate accounting entity.  The operations of each fund are 

accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 

liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.  

Government resources are allocated to, and accounted for, in individual funds based 

on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending 

activities are controlled. 

 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the 

governmental or business-type activities categories.  GASB Statement 34 sets forth 

minimum criteria for the determination of major funds, which should have a specific 

community focus. 

 

The funds of the City are described below: 

 

Governmental Fund Types 

 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of  

the City are financed.  The acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendable 

financial resources and the related liabilities (other than those in proprietary funds) 

are accounted for through governmental funds.  The measurement focus is upon 

determination of changes in financial position.  The following are the City's 

governmental fund types: 

 

General Fund 

 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City.  It is used to 

account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for 

in another fund. 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 

revenue sources that are legally restricted, committed, or assigned to 

expenditures for specified purposes the purpose of which is determined by 

the fund name.  The reporting entity includes the following special revenue 

funds, which are reported as major funds: 

 

Park Fund - This fund accounts for taxes collected and expended for operations 

and improvements to the City's parks. 
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued) 

 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

 

Governmental Fund Types (Continued) 

 

Special Revenue Funds (Continued) 

 

Transportation Sales Tax Fund - This fund accounts for sales taxes to be 

used to finance street improvements. 

 

Capital Improvement Fund - This fund is used to account for sales taxes  

and other resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major 

capital facilities other than those financed by the proprietary funds. 

 

Debt Service Fund 

 

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources 

for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs 

other than bonds payable from the operations of the Enterprise Funds. 

 

Proprietary Fund Types 

 

The proprietary fund is used to account for the City's ongoing organizations  

and activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector.  The 

measurement focus is based upon determination of net income.  The City reports 

the following major proprietary funds: 

 

Electric Fund - This fund accounts for the acquisition, operation, and 

maintenance of the City's electric distribution system. 

 

Water Fund - This fund accounts for the acquisition, operation, and 

maintenance of the City's water treatment and distribution system. 

 

Waste Water Fund - This fund accounts for the acquisition, operation, and 

maintenance of the City's sanitary sewer treatment and distribution system. 

 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 

statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when  

a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are 

recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items 

are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued) 
 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 

government-wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are payments  

in lieu of taxes and other charges between the government's proprietary functions and 

various other functions of the government.  Elimination of these charges would distort  

the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
 

Government fund level financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues 

are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are 

considered to be available when they are collected within the current period or soon 

enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the government 

considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 

current fiscal period.  Grant revenues' availability period is generally considered to be one 

year.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 

accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 

compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when the liability 

has matured and payment is due. 
 

Business-type activities and all proprietary funds are accounted for using an  

economic resources measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, all assets and  

all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance  

sheet.  Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues)  

and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets.  Proprietary funds distinguish operating 

revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and expenses 

generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 

with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues  

of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating 

expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative 

expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting  

this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

For the purpose of financial reporting, "cash and cash equivalents" includes all 

demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term investments 

with an original maturity of three months or less.  The City maintains cash and 

investment pools which are available for use by most funds.  Each fund type's portion 

of this pool is displayed in the financial statements as cash and cash equivalents.  

Investments made in accordance with bond ordinances are reflected as restricted 

cash and cash equivalents.  Funds with overdrawn balances are not charged interest. 
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued) 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 

 

As provided for by GASB Statement 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, the City reflects money 

market investments with a maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase at 

amortized cost, which approximates fair value.  All other investments are required 

to be reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. 

 

Accounts Receivable 

 

Governmental activities accounts receivable consists of sanitation charges and other 

miscellaneous services provided to citizens, net of an allowance for uncollectible 

accounts of $8,916.  Business-type activities represent billed electric, water, and 

waste water charges, net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $293,008. 

 

Inventories 

 

Inventories, consisting of materials and supplies, are valued at lower of cost or net 

realizable value.  Cost is determined using estimated replacement cost basis which 

approximates actual cost. 

 

Prepaid Items 

 

Prepaid balances are for payments made by the City in the current year to provide 

services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year, and the reserve for prepaid items  

has been recognized to signify that a portion of fund balance is not available for other 

subsequent expenditures.  Prepaid expenses are accounted for using the consumption 

method. 

 

Restricted Assets 

 

Unspent proceeds and resources set aside for the repayment of revenue bonds  

and certificates of participation are classified as restricted assets on the applicable 

statements of net position because they are maintained in separate bank or trust 

accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.  Restricted assets 

also include amounts held for court bonds and deposits in the General Fund and 

customer deposits in the Electric Fund. 

 

Capital Assets 

 

Under GASB Statement 34, all capital assets, whether owned by governmental activities 

or business-type activities, are recorded and depreciated in the government-wide 

financial statements.  Under GASB 34, small cities have the option to capitalize  
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued) 

 

Capital Assets (Continued) 

 

infrastructure purchased in previous years.  The City of Odessa, Missouri, has chosen 

not to capitalize existing infrastructure but will capitalize any future infrastructure that  

it acquires.  No long-term capital assets or depreciation are shown in the governmental 

fund financial statements. 

 

Capital assets, including public domain infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, 

and other assets that are immovable and of value only to the City) are defined as 

assets with an individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life 

greater than one year.  Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair 

market value on the date donated. 

 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 

or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.  Major improvements are 

capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital 

assets. 

 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 

estimated useful lives: 

 

Equipment and vehicles 5 - 10 years 

Buildings and land improvements 10 - 50 years 

Infrastructure 30 years 

Water and sewer system 30 - 50 years 

 

Capital assets transferred between funds are transferred at their net book value (cost 

less accumulated depreciation), as of the date of the transfer. 

 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position now reports a separate section 

for deferred outflows of resources.  This financial statement element represents  

a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 

recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The City's 

pension related amounts are reported in this category.   

 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet now report a 

separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This financial statement element 

represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will 

not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The City's 

pension related amounts are reported in this category.   

 



CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

31 

 

NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued) 
 

Compensated Absences 
 

Under terms of the City's personnel policy, employees are granted paid time off (PTO) 

leave in amounts ranging from 20 - 240 hours, based upon length of service.  Up to 

160 hours of PTO earned can be carried over each year, and accumulated PTO is 

payable on separation of service. 
 

Employees are awarded sick leave hours at the beginning of each year or upon 

employment.  Employees are allowed to accrue up to 480 hours of sick time to carry 

forward into the subsequent year.  Upon retirement or termination in good standing, 

an employee can convert unused sick days into vacation days at a rate of eight hours 

of sick leave is equivalent to one hour of vacation. 
 

Vested or accumulated PTO is accrued when earned in the government-wide and 

proprietary financial statements.  A liability is reported in the governmental funds 

only if it has matured as a result of employee resignations or retirements. 
 

Long-Term Debt 
 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, outstanding debt 
is reported as liabilities.  The governmental fund financial statements recognize the 
proceeds and payments of debt as other financing sources and uses of the current 
period.  Issuance costs are reported as expenditures. 

 

Pensions 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 

and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, 

information about the fiduciary net position of the Missouri Local Government 

Employees Retirement System (LAGERS) and additions to/deductions from LAGERS 

fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported 

by LAGERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 

contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 

terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 

Fund Equity 
 

Government-Wide Statements 
 

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 
 

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets including restricted 

capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding 

balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable 

to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued) 

 

Fund Equity (Continued) 

 

Government-Wide Statements (Continued) 

 

Restricted net position consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use 

either by external groups - such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and 

regulations of other governments - or through constitutional provision or enabling 

legislation.  It is the City's policy to use restricted net assets first, prior to the use 

of unrestricted net assets, when a disbursement is paid for purposes in which 

both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. 

 

Unrestricted net position does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested 

in capital assets, net of related debt." 

 

Fund Financial Statements 

 

Fund Balance Classification   

 

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on 

classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to 

which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 

amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent.  The classifications 

used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 

 

Nonspendable 

 

This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they either 

(a) are not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be 

maintained intact. 

 

Restricted 

 

This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed 

on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such 

as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations 

of other governments or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions 

or enabling legislation. 

 

Committed 

 

This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 

pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Aldermen.  

These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of 
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (Continued) 
 

Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 

Fund Balance Classification (Continued) 
 

Committed (Continued) 
 

Aldermen (the Board) removes or changes the specified use by taking the 

same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the 

funds were initially committed.  This classification also includes contractual 

obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically 

committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.  The City 

currently has no amounts classified in this category. 
 

Assigned 
 

This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City's intent 

to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.  

This intent can be expressed by the Board of Aldermen or through the Board 

delegating this responsibility to the City Administrator through the budgetary 

process.  The City currently has no amounts classified in this category. 
 

Unassigned 
 

This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund as 

it is the only fund that reports a positive, unassigned fund balance.  However, 

in governmental funds other than the General Fund, if expenditures incurred 

for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or 

assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative 

unassigned fund balance in that fund.  
 

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed 

resources, and then assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but 

reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to defer the 

use of these other classified funds. 
 

E. USE OF ESTIMATES 
 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial 

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 

period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE  1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

 

F. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES 

 

During the course of normal operations, the City has transactions between funds, 

including expenditures and transfers of resources, to provide services and construct 

assets.  Legally authorized transfers are included in the fund financial statements of 

both governmental and proprietary funds. 

 

G. PROPERTY TAXES 

 

The details of the City's property tax calendar can be found in Note 3 of the financial 

statements. 

 

NOTE  2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 

The disclosures that follow have been prepared in accordance with the provisions  

of GASB Statement 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures.  This statement 

establishes disclosure requirements for investment and deposit risks related to credit 

risk, concentrations of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk. 

 

A summary of the carrying values of deposits, investments, and petty cash at March 31, 

2024, is as follows: 

 
Total deposits 13,461,913  

Certificates of deposit 609,979        

Held by trustee 478,404        

Petty cash 767                

Total 14,551,063  
 

 

These carrying values are reflected on the statement of net position as follows: 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 10,370,454  

Certificates of deposit 609,979        

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,570,630     

Total 14,551,063  
 

 

Investment Policies 

 

The City follows state statutes which allow the City to deposit in open accounts and 

certificates of deposit, and to invest in direct obligations of the U.S. Government, U.S. 

Government agency obligations, and repurchase agreements.  Restricted assets are 

invested in accordance with bond ordinances by the trustee in money market mutual 

funds. 
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NOTE  2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

 

Investment Policies (Continued) 

 

Credit Risk - The City's general credit risk policy is to apply the prudent person rule:  

Investments shall be made with the exercise of that judgment and care, under circumstances 

then prevailing, which individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the 

management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the 

probable safety of their capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. 

 

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely 

affect the fair value of an investment.  The City does not have a formal policy for interest 

rate risk.  However, the City does manage its exposure to fair value loss arising from 

interest rate changes on internally invested funds by reviewing the portfolio on an ongoing 

basis for changes in effective yield amounts. 

 

Custodial Credit Risk - The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of 

the failure of a depository financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits 

or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 

party.  The City's policy is to collateralize bank deposits with securities held by the financial 

institution's agent and in the City's name.  As of March 31, 2024, all of the City's deposits 

with financial institutions were fully insured or collateralized by securities held in the City's 

name in the form of joint safekeeping receipts. 

 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any 

one issuer.  Investments that represent more than 5% of the City's investments consist of 

the money market mutual funds shown above. 

 

NOTE  3. PROPERTY TAX REVENUE 

 

The City's property tax is levied each November 1 on the assessed value as of the prior 

January 1 for all property located in the City.  Assessed valuations are established by the 

Lafayette County Assessor.  The county collects the property tax and remits it to the City 

monthly.  

 

The assessed values for property located in the City as of January 1, 2024 and 2023, 

that the levy was based on, are as follows: 

 
2024 2023

Real estate 50,659,260  49,259,686  

Personal property 14,408,451  15,192,990  

Total current valuation 65,067,711  64,452,676  
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NOTE  3. PROPERTY TAX REVENUE (Continued) 

 

The City is permitted by Missouri state statutes to levy taxes up to $1.00 of assessed 

valuation for general governmental services other than payment of principal and interest 

on long-term debt, up to 0.20 cents for recreation, and in unlimited amounts for the 

payment of principal and interest on long-term debt.  The City's property tax levies for the 

years ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, per $100 assessed valuation, were as follows: 

 
2024 2023

General 0.6057  0.5658  

Parks 0.1598  0.1493  

Total 0.7655  0.7151  

 

Property taxes may attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  Taxes are 

levied no later than November 1, and are due and payable at that time.  All unpaid taxes 

levied by November 1 become delinquent January 1 of the following year. 

 

NOTE  4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 

 

Intergovernmental revenue during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, consisted of 

the following: 

 
General

State

Motor vehicle fuel tax 200,776  

Motor vehicle sales tax and

registration fees 84,241    

Financial institution tax 47            

Other                  

Grants 58,249    

Other 422          

County

Use tax 58,135    

Road and bridge tax 41,307    

Total 443,177  
 



CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

37 

 

NOTE  5. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2024, was as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities 
 

Balance

April 1,

2023 Increases Decreases

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land 2,137,847                                               2,137,847      

Capital assets, being depreciated

Buildings and improvements 3,678,126      203,976      (262,457)    3,619,645      

Land improvements 407,895         407,895         

Machinery and equipment 1,849,129      84,571        (54,557)      1,879,143      

Infrastructure 5,284,606      443,089      5,727,695      

Furniture and fixtures 65,163           59,425        (28,795)      95,793           

Vehicles 714,575         294,304      (72,721)      936,158         

Total capital assets,

being depreciated 11,999,494   1,085,365  (418,530)    12,666,329   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (1,331,466)     (95,137)       86,550       (1,340,053)     

Land improvements (164,298)        (8,930)         (173,228)        

Machinery and equipment (1,037,619)     (52,955)       54,287       (1,036,287)     

Infrastructure (1,712,072)     (166,099)    (1,878,171)     

Furniture and fixtures (61,564)          (8,822)         28,075       (42,311)          

Vehicles (460,720)        (127,839)    72,721       (515,838)        

Total accumulated depreciation (4,767,739)     (459,782)    241,633     (4,985,888)     

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 7,231,755      625,583      (176,897)    7,680,441      

Governmental activities, capital

assets, net 9,369,602      625,583      (176,897)    9,818,288      

Balance

March 31,

2024

 

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows: 
 

General government 60,884    

Public Safety 84,587    

Highways and Streets 232,580  

Parks and Recreation 81,731    

459,782  
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NOTE  5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

 

Business-Type Activities 

 
Balance

April 1,

2023 Increases Decreases

Business-Type Activities - Electric Fund

Capital assets, being depreciated

Generation and distribution system 8,065,534      8,065,534      

Buildings and improvements 1,138,290      21,850        1,160,140      

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 1,545,717      102,070      (108,138)    1,539,649      

Total capital assets, being

depreciated 10,749,541   123,920      (108,138)    10,765,323   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Generation and distribution system (6,380,874)     (170,724)    (6,551,598)     

Buildings and improvements (612,451)        (38,036)       (650,487)        

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles (1,107,238)     (77,552)       82,463       (1,102,327)     

Total accumulated depreciation (8,100,563)     (286,312)    82,463       (8,304,412)     

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 2,648,978      (162,392)    (25,675)      2,460,911      

Business-type activities - Electric Fund

capital assets, net 2,648,978      (162,392)    (25,675)      2,460,911      

Balance

April 1,

2023 Increases Decreases

Business-Type Activities - Water Fund

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land 144,010                                                  144,010         

Capital assets, being depreciated

Treatment and distribution system 7,550,566      7,550,566      

Buildings and improvements 4,417,921      4,417,921      

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 823,911         59,425        (50,000)      833,336         

Total capital assets, 

being depreciated 12,792,398   59,425        (50,000)      12,801,823   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Treatment and distribution system (4,720,857)     (195,035)    (4,915,892)     

Buildings and improvements (3,567,885)     (123,241)    (3,691,126)     

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles (427,389)        (53,631)       50,000       (431,020)        

Total accumulated depreciation (8,716,131)     (371,907)    50,000       (9,038,038)     

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 4,076,267      (312,482)                        3,763,785      

Business-type activities - Water Fund

capital assets, net 4,220,277      (312,482)                        3,907,795      

Balance

March 31,

Balance

2024

March 31,

2024
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NOTE  5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Business-Type Activities (Continued) 
 

Balance

April 1,

2023 Increases Decreases

Business-Type Activities - Waste Water Fund

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land 52,748                                                    52,748           

Capital assets, being depreciated

Collection and treatment system 9,131,644      146,763      9,278,407      

Buildings and improvements 19,450,610                        19,450,610   

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 828,117                                                  828,117         

Total capital assets, being

depreciated 29,410,371   146,763                          29,557,134   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Collection and treatment system (3,418,466)     (193,511)    (3,611,977)     

Buildings and improvements (7,169,041)     (566,463)    (7,735,504)     

Machinery, equipment, and vehicles (609,138)        (23,255)                           (632,393)        

Total accumulated depreciation (11,196,645)  (783,229)                        (11,979,874)  

Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 18,213,726   (636,466)                        17,577,260   

Business-type activities - Waste Water

Fund capital assets, net 18,266,474   (636,466)                        17,630,008   

2024

Balance

March 31,

 

NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

Governmental Activities 
 

Changes in the debt for the year ended March 31, 2024, consisted of the following: 
 

Balance Due in

April 1, One

2023 Additions Year

Direct borrowing arrangements

Financing lease - park 832,000     140,000  692,000      144,000  

Financing lease - improvements 472,000     61,000    411,000      63,000    

Financing lease - city hall 1,151,000  46,000    1,105,000  47,000    

Compensated absences 70,171        28,640                    98,811        98,111    

Total governmental

activities 2,525,171  28,640   247,000  2,306,811  352,111  

Retirements

Balance

March 31,

2024
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NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 

Governmental Activities (Continued) 

 

Direct Borrowing Arrangements  

 

Financing Leases 

 

In August 2008, the City entered into a lease agreement to finance the construction 

of an aquatic center in the amount of $2,300,000, at an interest rate of 3.65%.  

Lease payments, including certain fees, are due in monthly installments through 

August 2028.   

 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum 

lease payments as of March 31, 2024, are as follows: 

 

Years Principal Interest Total

2025 144,000      22,849    166,849      

2026 153,000      17,383    170,383      

2027 156,000      11,808    167,808      

2028 168,000      5,913       173,913      

2029 71,000        654          71,654        

692,000      58,607    750,607      
 

 

In May 2019, the City entered into a lease agreement to finance the purchases of 

equipment and vehicles in the amount of $642,000, at an interest rate of 3.00%.  

Lease payments are due in monthly installments through May 2029.   

 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum 

lease payments as of March 31, 2024, are as follows: 

 
Years Principal Interest Total

2025 63,000        11,385    74,385        

2026 65,000        9,465       74,465        

2027 67,000        7,485       74,485        

2028 70,000        5,430       75,430        

2029 72,000        3,300       75,300        

2030 74,000        1,110       75,110        

411,000      38,175    449,175      
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NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 

Governmental Activities (Continued) 

 

Direct Borrowing Arrangements (Continued) 

 

Capital Leases 

 

In April 2022, the City entered into a lease agreement to finance improvements to 

city hall in the amount of $1,200,000 at an interest rate of 2.95%.  Lease payments 

are due in semi-annual installments for the interest portion each September and 

March with annual payments for the principal portion beginning March 1, 2023, 

through March 1, 2042.   

 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum 

lease payments as of March 31, 2024, are as follows: 

 
Years Principal Interest Total

2025 47,000        32,598    79,598        

2026 49,000        31,211    80,211        

2027 50,000        29,766    79,766        

2028 52,000        28,291    80,291        

2029 53,000        26,757    79,757        

2030 - 2034 292,000      109,239  401,239      

2035 - 2039 335,000      63,721    398,721      

2040 - 2042 227,000      13,541    240,541      

1,105,000  335,124  1,440,124  
 

 

Business-Type Activities 

 

Changes in debt for the year ended March 31, 2024, consisted of the following: 

 
Balance Due in

April 1, One

2023 Year

Electric Fund

Direct borrowing arrangements

Financing lease 333,450        50,700    282,750        52,650    

Compensated absences 5,851             16,635                  22,486          22,486    

Total Electric Fund 339,301        16,635 50,700    305,236        75,136    

March 31,

2023

Balance

Additions Retirements
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NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 

Business-Type Activities (Continued) 

 
Balance Due in

April 1, One

2023 Year

Water Fund

Revenue bonds 228,929        228,929                         

Direct borrowing arrangements                  

Financing lease 521,550        79,300    442,250                         

Compensated absences 22,957                        27            22,930          22,930    

Total Water Fund 773,436                      79,327    694,109        22,930    

Waste Water Fund

Revenue bonds 2,576,071     365,000  2,211,071     375,000  

Loans payable 9,499,400     428,100  9,071,300     434,800  

Unamortized premium 22,338          12,412    9,926             9,926       

Compensated absences 16,312          1,485                     17,797          17,797    

Total Waste Water Fund 12,114,121  1,485    805,512  11,310,094  837,523  

Total business-type activities 13,226,858  18,120 935,539  12,309,439  935,589  

Additions Retirements

Balance

March 31,

2024

 

Revenue Bonds 

 
2004B Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, dated 
 May 28, 2004, due in annual installments 
 through January 1, 2025, with interest rates 
 of 2.00% - 5.25%. 375,000 

 
Series 2017, Combined Water Works and Sewerage 

System Refunding Revenue Bonds dated 
September 12, 2017, due in annual 
installments starting September 1, 2026  
through September 1, 2030, with an interest  
rate of 2.60%. 2,065,000 

 

  2,440,000 
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NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 

Business-Type Activities (Continued) 
 

Revenue Bonds (Continued) 

 

The annual debt service requirements to amortize the revenue bonds as of March 31, 

2024, are as follows: 

 

Years Ending 

March 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2025 375,000  18,750  53,340     447,090      

2026 53,340     53,340        

2027                                 445,000      48,111     493,111      

2028 475,000      36,945     511,945      

2029 480,000      24,648     504,648      

2030 - 2031                                 665,000      14,094     679,094      

Total 375,000  18,750  2,065,000   230,478   2,689,228  

 Series 2004B 

Sewerage System

Revenue Bonds

 Series 2017, Combined 

Water Works and Sewerage

Revenue Bonds

 System Refunding 

 
 

In September 2017, the City authorized the issuance of Combined Water Works and 

Sewerage System Revenue Bonds Series 2017 to pay off the 2011 Certificates of 

Participation and to complete improvements to their water and wastewater systems.  

 

The annual debt service requirements for the 2017 Combined Water Works and 

Sewerage System Refunding Bonds have been allocated between the Water Fund  

and the Waste Water Fund based upon their use of the proceeds and are as follows:  
 

Years Ending

March 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2025 5,958     47,382    53,340        

2026 5,958     47,382    53,340        

2027 49,333    5,374     395,667     42,737    493,111      

2028 52,659    4,127     422,341     32,818    511,945      

2029 53,214    2,753     426,786     21,894    504,647      

2030 - 2031 73,723    1,574     591,277     12,521    679,095      

Total 228,929  25,744  1,836,071  204,734  2,295,478  

Water Fund

Waste Water

Fund
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NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 

Business-Type Activities (Continued) 

 
Loans 

 
Series 2005, Waste Water Fund 1.50% loan  

 from the Missouri Department of Natural  

 Resources, dated June 1, 2005, due in  

 semi-annual installments through July 1, 2026. 140,000 

 

Series 2014 Combined Water Works and Sewerage 

 System 1.46% loan from the Missouri Department 

 of Natural Resources, dated August 26, 2014, 

 due in semi-annual installments through July 1, 

 2043. 6,497,000 

 

Series 2015 Combined Water Works and Sewerage 

 System 1.46% loan from the Missouri Department 

 of Natural Resources, dated July 29, 2015, due 

 in semi-annual installments through January 1, 

 2044, with an interest rate of 1.25%. 2,434,300 

 

  9,071,300 

 

The Series 2005 and 2014 loans are collateralized by a pledge of the net revenues to the 

extent necessary to meet the debt service requirements.  The debt agreements contain 

limitations and restrictions on annual debt service requirements, and minimum amounts 

to be maintained in various debt service and revenue accounts, including a renewal  

and replacement account in the Waste Water Fund, as well as minimum revenue bond 

coverages.  The City is in compliance with all such financial limitations and restrictions. 

 

On August 26, 2014, the City authorized the issuance of Combined Water Works and 

Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri - Direct Loan Program) Series 2014  

in an amount not to exceed $8,000,000, as a result of its participation in the State of 

Missouri - Direct Loan Program.  Under the Direct Loan Program, the Department of Natural 

Resources (DNR) acts as the purchaser of the bond and loans the City amounts equal to 

eligible costs related to the construction of a new waste water treatment facility.  Interest is 

due semi-annually, based on the outstanding loan balance.  Principal is due semi-annually 

in various installments from July 1, 2016 through July 1, 2035.  On August 25, 2021, the 

City amended the issuance with the consent of DNR to adjust the payment schedule to a 

maturity date of July 1, 2043. 

 

On July 29, 2015, the City authorized the issuance of Combined Waterworks and Sewerage 

System Revenue Bonds (State of Missouri - Direct Loan Program) Series 2015 in an amount 

not to exceed $3,000,000, as a result of its participation in the State of Missouri - Direct 

Loan Program.  Under the Direct Loan Program, DNR acts as the purchaser of the bond and 

loans the City amounts equal to eligible costs related to the construction of waste water  
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NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 

Business-Type Activities (Continued) 

 

Loans (Continued) 

 

system improvements.  Interest is due semi-annually, based on the outstanding loan 

balance.  Principal is due semi-annually in various installments from January 1, 2017, 

through January 1, 2038.  On August 25, 2021, the City amended the issuance with the 

consent of DNR to adjust the payment schedule to a maturity date of January 1, 2044. 

 

The annual debt service requirements to amortize the 2005, 2014, and 2015 loans 

outstanding as of March 31, 2024, are detailed below:  

 

Years Ending 

March 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2025 56,000    1,890  276,000      93,856        102,800      30,108    560,654        

2026 56,000    1,050  281,000      89,804        104,700      28,818    561,372        

2027 28,000    210     287,000      85,680        106,500      27,504    534,894        

2028 293,000      81,468        108,300      26,167    508,935        

2029 298,000      77,176        110,300      24,807    510,283        

2030 - 2034             1,582,000  318,506      581,000      102,778  2,584,284     

2035 - 2039 1,745,000  197,715      634,000      64,997    2,641,712     

2040 - 2044                              1,735,000  64,518        686,700      23,772    2,509,990     

Total 140,000  3,150  6,497,000  1,008,723  2,434,300  328,951  10,412,124  

Series 2015

LoanLoan Loan

Series 2005 Series 2014

 

The net revenues of the Water and Waste Water Funds are pledged over the terms of the 

revenue bonds and loan in amounts equal to the total principal and interest payments 

above.  The Missouri State Constitution permits a city, by vote of either two-thirds or  

four-sevenths of the voting electorate, depending upon the date of the election, to incur 

general obligation indebtedness for "city purposes" not to exceed 10% of the assessed 

value of taxable tangible property and to incur additional general obligation indebtedness 

not to exceed, in the aggregate, an additional 10% of the assessed value of taxable 

tangible property, for the purpose of acquiring rights-of-way; construction; extending and 

improving streets and avenues, and/or sanitary or storm sewer systems; and purchasing 

or constructing waterworks, electric, or other light plants, provided the total general 

obligation indebtedness does not exceed 20% of the assessed valuation of taxable 

property. 
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NOTE  6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

 

Business-Type Activities (Continued) 

 

Direct Borrowing Arrangements 

 

Financing Lease 

 

In December 2018, the City entered into a personal property lease purchase 

agreement with Capital One Public Funding, LLC, to fund the purchase of new 

business-type metering equipment.   

 

Property secured through this lease agreement will total $1,335,000 with lease 

proceeds split between the City's Electric and Water Funds.  The lease requires 

semi-annual interest payments at 3.48% of the outstanding principal and annual 

lease payments of varying amounts starting in December 2019. 

 

The annual debt service requirements to service the financing lease outstanding as 

of March 31, 2024, are detailed below.   

 

Years Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2025 52,650     9,840    82,350     15,390 160,230  

2026 54,600     8,007    85,400     12,525 160,532  

2027 56,550     6,107    88,450     9,553    160,660  

2028 58,500     4,139    91,500     6,475    160,614  

2029 60,450     2,104    94,550     3,290    160,394  

Total 282,750   30,197 442,250   47,233 802,430  

Waste Water

Water Fund Fund

 
 

NOTE  7. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

 

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that a statute or the budget requires 

to collect them, to the fund that a statute or the budget requires to expend them; to  

move unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs 

accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations; and to report 

payments in lieu of taxes and indirect cost allocations from the enterprise funds to the 

General Fund.  For the year ended March 31, 2024, these amounts were $448,509 and 

$415,056, respectively. 

 

Interfund receivable and payable activity represents transactions between the different 

funds under the City's control.  In most cases, these balances represent short-term 

advances from one fund to another.  The interfund balance between the Water and Waste 

Water Funds totaled $310,000.   
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NOTE  7. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 

 

Interfund transfers for the year ended March 31, 2024, consisted of the following: 

 

Transfers Out General Park Total

General                  12,675  63,625  76,300    

Capital Improvement                  19,015                 19,015    

Electric 410,115                                410,115  

Water 205,785                                205,785  

Waste Water 247,665                                247,665  

Total 863,565  31,690  63,625  958,880  

Transfers In

Transportation

Sales Tax

 
 

NOTE  8. PENSION PLAN 

 

Plan Description 

 

The City of Odessa, Missouri, contributes to the Missouri Local Government Employees 

Retirement System (LAGERS).  LAGERS is an agent, multi-employer, statewide public 

employee retirement plan for units of local government which is legally separate and 

fiscally independent of the state of Missouri.  LAGERS was established in 1967 and is 

administered in accordance with RSMo. 70.600-70.755.  At June 30, 2023, there were 

861 participating political subdivisions. 

 

Responsibility for the operation and administration of the plan is vested in the LAGERS Board 

of Trustees consisting of seven persons.  Three trustees are elected by the employees who 

participate in the system, three trustees are elected by the members of the governing bodies 

of those political subdivisions which participate in the system, and one trustee is appointed 

by the governor.  The regular term of office for members of the LAGERS Board of Trustees is 

four years.  Members of the LAGERS Board of Trustees serve without compensation with 

respect to their duties, but are reimbursed by LAGERS for their actual and necessary 

expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. 

 

For the City's year ending March 31, 2024, the net pension asset is based on an actuarial 

valuation performed as of February 28, 2023, and a measurement date of June 30, 2023. 

 

Benefits Provided 

 

LAGERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits to employees of participating 

political subdivisions.  All benefits vest after five years of service.  Employees who retire on 

or after age 60 (55 for police) with five or more years of service are entitled to an allowance 

for life based upon the benefit program then in effect for their political subdivision.  

Employees may retire with an early retirement benefit with a minimum of five years of 
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NOTE  8. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 

Benefits Provided (Continued) 

 

credited service and after attaining age 55 (50 for police) and receive a reduced 

allowance.  The LAGERS Board of Trustees establishes the benefit plans and provisions 

that are available for adoption.  The political subdivision's governing body adopts all 

benefits of the plan.  Benefit terms provide for annual postretirement adjustments to each 

member's retirement allowance subsequent to the member's retirement date.  The annual 

adjustment is based on the increase in the Consumer Price Index and is limited to 4% per 

year. 

 

At the date the actuarial valuation was performed, the City had 41 active employees, 

38 inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits, and 46 inactive 

employees (or their beneficiaries) who are currently receiving benefits.   

 

Contributions 

 

Each participating unit of government is obligated by state law to make all required 

contributions to the plan.  The required contributions are actuarially determined using 

the individual entry-age actuarial cost method.  There are no long-term contracts for 

contributions to the plan.  All actuarial liabilities are amortized over a period of 30 years 

or less.  Administrative costs of LAGERS are financed through investment earnings of the 

system.  Employee contributions are determined at the election of the governing body of 

the local government.  Should the governing body elect to participate in the contributory 

plan, all employees must contribute four percent of their gross salary.  The governing 

body may elect to participate in the noncontributory plan which would result in no 

employee contributions. 

 

Actuarial Assumptions 

 

The pension liability for the June 30, 2023, measurement date was determined using the 

following actuarial assumptions applied to the measurement: 

 

 Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal and Modified Terminal Funding 

 

 Amortization Method A level percentage of payroll amortization method is 

used to amortize the UAAL over a closed period of 

years.  If the UAAL (excluding the UAAL associated 

with benefit changes) is negative, then this amount is 

amortized over the greater of (i) the remaining initial 

amortization period of (ii) 15 years.   

 

 Remaining Amortization Period 15 years 

 

 Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market; 20% corridor 
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NOTE  8. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

 

 Inflation 2.75% wage inflation; 2.25% price inflation 

 

 Salary Increases 2.75% - 6.75%, including wage inflation 

 

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%, net of investment expenses 

 

 Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific 

to the type of eligibility condition. 

 

 Mortality The healthy retiree mortality tables, for post-retirement 

mortality, used in evaluating allowances to be paid 

were 115% of the PubG-2010 Retiree Mortality Table 

for males and females.  The disabled retiree mortality 

tables, for post-retirement mortality, used in evaluating 

allowances to be paid were 115% of the PubNS-2010 

Disabled Retiree Mortality Table for males and 

females.  The pre-retirement mortality tables used 

were 75% of the PubG-2010 Employee Mortality Table 

for males and females of General groups and 75% of 

the PubS-2010 Employee Mortality Table for males  

and females of Police, Fire, and Public Safety groups.  

Mortality rates for a particular calendar year are 

determined by applying the MP-2020 mortality 

improvement scale to the above described tables. 

 

 Other Information None 

 

Discount Rate 

 

Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their actuarial present values 

using a single discount rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on pension 

plan investments and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year 

general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to 

the extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to pay benefits).  

The expected rate of return on pension investments is 7.00%, the municipal bond rate is 

3.69% based on the weekly rate closest to but not later than the measurement date of the 

"20-Year Municipal GO AA Index" rate from Fidelity; and the resulting single discount rate is 

7.00% for the General and Police Divisions. 

 

This rate considers the ability of the plan to meet benefit obligations in the future.   

To make this determination, employer contributions, employee contributions, benefit 

payments, expenses, and investment returns are projected into the future.  The Plan Net 

Position (assets) in future years can then be determined and compared to its obligation  
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NOTE  8. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 

Discount Rate (Continued) 

 

to make benefit payments in those years.  As long as assets are projected to be on hand 

in a future year, the assumed valuation discount rate is used.  In years where assets are 

not projected to be sufficient to meet benefit payments, the use of a "risk-free" rate is  

required, as described in the preceding paragraph. 

 

LAGERS has provided tables to the City that provide background for the development of 

the single discount rate.  These tables are described as follows: 

 

The Projection of Contributions table shows the development of expected 

contributions in future years.  Normal cost contributions for future hires are not 

included (nor are their liabilities). 

 

The Projection of Plan Fiduciary Net Position table shows the development of expected 

asset levels in future years. 

 

The Present Values of Projected Benefit Payments table shows the development of 

the Single Discount Rate (SDR).  It breaks down the benefit payments into present 

values for funded and unfunded portions and shows the equivalent total at the SDR. 

 

Pension Liability Sensitivity 

 

The following table presents the net pension asset (liability) for the City's proportionate 

share of the net pension asset (liability) as of June 30, 2023, calculated using the 

discount rate of 7.00% for the General and Police Divisions, as well as what the 

pension plan's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 

that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate: 

 
1.00% Current 1.00%

Decrease Rate Increase

6.00% 7.00% 8.00%

General Division 20,882     (977,938)     (1,800,269)  

Police Division 144,063   (188,160)     (455,795)     

164,945   (1,166,098)  (2,256,064)  

 

Assumed Asset Allocation 

 

Activities undertaken by LAGERS Investment Team include setting and implementing  

investment strategies; appointing and dismissing investment managers; monitoring  

investment allocation, liquidity, and performance; and ensuring safekeeping of assets.  
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NOTE  8. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 

Assumed Asset Allocation (Continued) 

 

To achieve the goal of 7.00% long-term rate of return, LAGERS investment team sets an 

investment strategy which is devised after analyzing the long-term view of the market 

and consulting with LAGERS' Board of Trustees.  

 

The assumed asset allocation is as follows:  

 
Equities 31.9%

Fixed Income 26.8%

Real Assets/Return 30.2%

Strategic 4.7%

Alpha* 6.4%

 

 * Alpha portfolio is based on a volatility adjusted exposure targeting 8% overall. 

 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

 

The balances of deferred outflows and inflows of resources to be recognized in future 

pension expense consists of the following:  

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual

  earnings on pension plan investments 150,775        

Differences between expected and actual 

experience 162,963        

Employer contributions subsequent to the 

measurement date 144,063        

457,801        

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Changes in assumptions 1,771             

Differences between expected and actual 

experience 10,357          

12,128          

Net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources 445,673        

 

$144,063 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction 

of the net pension liability in the year ended March 31, 2024. 
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NOTE  8. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (Continued) 

 

Net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources by year to be recognized in future pension 

expenses:  

 

Years Ending

March 31, 

2025 244,345   

2026 (93,741)    

222,660   

2027 72,409     

445,673   

outflows (inflows)

Net deferred

of resources

 
 

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Total pension liability (asset)

Service cost 177,299        

Interest on total pension liability 619,245        

Difference between expected and actual

experience of the total pension liability 78,059          

Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (435,731)       

Net change in total pension liability 438,872        

Total pension liability - beginning 8,973,389     

Total pension liability - ending 9,412,261     

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 171,019        

Net investment income 363,469        

Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (435,731)       

Pension plan administrative expense (16,134)         

Other (13,473)         

Net change in fiduciary net position 69,150          

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 10,509,209  

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 10,578,359  

Net pension liability (asset) (1,166,098)   
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NOTE  8. PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 

Additional financial and actuarial information supporting the preparation of the schedule  

of changes in fiduciary net position is included in the System's Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2023.  The Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report can be obtained at www.molagers.org or from the Missouri Local Area Government 

Employee Retirement System (LAGERS), P.O. Box 1665, Jefferson City, Missouri, 65102. 
 

NOTE  9. COMMITMENTS AND CONCENTRATIONS 
 

Energy Purchase Agreement 
 

The City is a member of the Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility Commission (MJMEUC).  

MJMEUC manages a power pool known as Missouri Public Energy Pool No. 1 (MOPEP).  The 

City is also a member of MOPEP.  The MOPEP members have an agreement with MJMEUC  

for the purchase of electric capacity and energy.  The agreement requires MJMEUC to supply 

the full energy requirements of the City and includes a procedure for the City to dedicate its 

capacity to MOPEP. 
 

MOPEP operations are governed by a Pool Committee consisting of one representative from 

each MOPEP member and is currently comprised of 60 members.  The Pool Committee is 

charged with setting rates for all services provided by MJMEUC to MOPEP members.  
 

The rates include recovery of all of MJMEUC's costs incurred in connection with acquiring, 

providing, arranging, or financing the provision of full requirements service to MOPEP 

members.  Such rates are based upon an annual budget and include, but are not limited to,  

all payments MJMEUC is required to make for reserves for coverage MJMEUC is required to 

maintain pursuant to any bond indenture, financing lease, or loan agreement or other financial 

contract in order to procure, deliver, or finance resources intended to provide full requirement 

service, without regard to whether any particular resource is available to or used by any 

particular MOPEP member.  Costs also include amounts required to fund MOPEP capital 

and/or operating reserves as may be established from time to time by the Pool Committee. 
 

The rates are established so as to charge each MOPEP member its proportionate share of 

all costs associated with MJMEUC's performance under the MOPEP agreement.  Charges 

based on such rates are assessed and billed monthly.  Rates are required to be established 

at least annually and are adjusted to recognize variances between budgeted and actual 

costs at least every six months.  To meet the power and energy requirements of the City and 

the other MOPEP members, MJMEUC presently obtains power and energy from the following 

resources:  (i) power purchased under long-term firm energy contracts, unit contingent 

energy contracts, and interruptible contracts; (ii) MJMEUC owned generation; (iii) member 

capacity; and (iv) spot market purchases.  The City purchases its full energy requirements 

from MJMEUC pursuant to the MOPEP agreement, but does not have any ownership interest 

in MJMEUC's resources. 
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NOTE  9. COMMITMENTS AND CONCENTRATIONS (Continued) 

 

Energy Purchase Agreement (Continued) 

 

In the event a member would cancel their MOPEP agreement, the member would  

remain responsible for its allocated share of MJMEUC's costs associated with all resource 

obligations entered into by MJMEUC for MOPEP prior to the notice of cancellation.  MJMEUC 

would utilize or sell the member's allocated share of output in exchange for providing the 

member a credit or offset equal to the fair market value of the output up to the amount of 

the member's obligation. 

 

As a result, a member would have a financial obligation after cancellation in the event that 

the fair market value of the output is less than the member's allocated share of MJMEUC's 

costs.  Currently the City has no plans or intentions to begin cancellation proceedings.  The 

City incurred costs of $4,124,417 from MJMEUC during the year. 

 

NOTE 10. COMPLIANCE WITH MISSOURI STATUTES 

 

Missouri House Bill No. 103 amending RSMo Section 302.341.2 became effective on 

August 28, 2013.  The amendments to the statute now require municipalities to report 

an accounting of the percent of annual general operating revenue from fines and costs 

for traffic violations. 

 
Fines and costs for traffic violations 48,885        

Annual general operating revenue 3,199,377  

Fines and costs for traffic violations as a 

percentage of annual general operating revenue 1.53%  
 

NOTE 11. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

In its normal course of business, the City is exposed to various risks of loss related to 

torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; workers' 

compensation; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance.  

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and 

no significant losses in the past three years. 
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NOTE 12. RESTRICTED CASH 

 

Restricted cash and equivalents at March 31, 2024, consisted of the following: 

 

Capital Federal Customer Debt

Outlay Programs Deposits Service Total

General Fund 1,085,722                   37,172    1,122,894  

Park Fund 136,821      136,821      

Transportation Sales Tax Fund 277,961      277,961      

Capital Improvement Fund 684,396      684,396      

Electric Fund                      633,128  633,128      

Water Fund 75,613    75,613        

Waste Water Fund                                                            650,981  650,981      

Total 1,099,178  1,085,722  633,128  763,766  3,581,794  

Restricted For

 

NOTE 13. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 

Accounts receivable at March 31, 2024, consisted of the following: 

 
Allowance for

Unbilled Doubtful Receivables

Accounts Interest Taxes Revenues Accounts Net

General Fund

General 190,208  190,208     

Trash 44,200    (8,162)       36,038        

Park Fund 73,178     73,178        

Transportation Sales Tax Fund 61,877     61,877        

Capital Improvement Fund 61,877     61,877        

Property taxes collected after

60 days of year end 24,629     24,629        

Electric Fund 570,224  210,790  (180,477)  600,537     

Water Fund 117,475  62,034    (53,533)     125,976     

Waste Water Fund 203,207    7,096                   98,816    (58,998)     250,121     

Total 935,106  7,096  411,769  371,640  (301,170)  1,424,441  

 

NOTE 14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for 

potential recognition or disclosure through July 31, 2025, the date the financial 

statements were available to be issued. 

 



 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 



Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Taxes 1,574,290  1,574,290  1,309,487  (264,803)  

Charges for services 600,756      600,756      855,781      255,025    

Licenses, permits, and fees 98,700        98,700        150,826      52,126      

Fines and forfeitures 45,800        45,800        50,020        4,220        

Intergovernmental revenues                      415,079      415,079    

Interest 15,000        15,000        91,593        76,593      

Proceeds from the sale of assets 164,099      164,099    

Other 14,500        14,500        82,823        68,323      

Total revenues 2,349,046  2,349,046  3,119,708  770,662    

EXPENDITURES

General government 752,751      752,751      937,970      (185,219)  

Public Safety 1,355,680  1,355,680  1,265,264  90,416      

Highways and Streets 539,112      539,112      486,248      52,864      

Sanitation 427,896      427,896      430,559      (2,663)       

Community Planning and Development 108,170      108,170      99,219        8,951        

Municipal court 20,286        20,286        35,587        (15,301)     

Total expenditures 3,203,895  3,203,895  3,254,847  (50,952)     

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER

EXPENDITURES (854,849)    (854,849)    (135,139)    719,710    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 1,534,013  1,534,013  863,565      (670,448)  

Transfers out (676,909)    (676,909)    (76,300)       600,609    

Total other financing sources 857,104      857,104      787,265      (69,839)     

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 2,255          2,255          652,126      649,871    

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 4,076,118  

FUND BALANCE, end of year 4,728,244  

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Taxes 414,498  414,498  441,408 26,910     

Charges for services 230,300  230,300  206,397 (23,903)    

Other                                   6,662      6,662       

Total revenues 644,798  644,798  654,467 9,669       

EXPENDITURES

Parks and Recreation 498,844  498,844  485,268 13,576     

Debt service                   

Principal 140,000  140,000  140,000                   

Interest and fiscal costs 35,355    35,355    35,355                     

Total expenditures 674,199  674,199  660,623 13,576     

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER

EXPENDITURES (29,401)   (29,401)   (6,156)    23,245     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in 87,901    87,901    31,690   (56,211)    

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 58,500    58,500    25,534   (32,966)    

Modified accrual adjustments

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 181,989 

FUND BALANCE, end of year 207,523 

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Taxes 314,971       314,971       339,096   24,125        

Grants 773,565       773,565       (773,565)     

Interest 50                 50                 358           308              

Total revenues 1,088,586   1,088,586   339,454   (749,132)     

EXPENDITURES

General government 570               570               618           (48)               

Highways and Streets 30,000         30,000         56,499 (26,499)       

Capital outlay 2,121,641   2,121,641   405,825   1,715,816   

Total expenditures 2,152,211   2,152,211   462,942   1,689,269   

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES (1,063,625)  (1,063,625)  (123,488)  940,137      

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers in                                             63,625     63,625        

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,063,625)  (1,063,625)  (59,863)    1,003,762   

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 358,339   

FUND BALANCE, end of year 298,476   

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES

Taxes 314,971   314,971   339,095     24,124        

Interest 12,000     12,000     79,107       67,107        

Total revenues 326,971   326,971   418,202     91,231        

EXPENDITURES

General government 60,627     60,627     643             59,984        

Capital outlay 247,500   247,500   503,147     (255,647)     

Debt service                      

Principal 107,000   107,000   107,000                          

Interest 47,199     47,199     48,286       (1,087)          

Total expenditures 462,326   462,326   659,076     (196,750)     

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES (135,355)  (135,355) (240,874)    (105,519)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out 64,605     64,605     (19,015)      (83,620)       

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (70,750)    (70,750)    (259,889)    (189,139)     

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year 942,638     

FUND BALANCE, end of year 682,749     

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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NOTE  1. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

 

Budgets for the City are prepared and adopted on the same basis of accounting as 

reported in the fund financial statements.  The City performs the following procedures  

in establishing the budget: 

 

The Budget Committee submits to the Board of Aldermen a proposed budget for the 

fiscal year commencing the following. 

 

The budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance. 

 

Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the 

Board of Aldermen.  The fund level constitutes the City's legal level of budgetary control.  

Reported budgeted amounts are as originally adopted and amended by resolution. 

 

Appropriations lapse at fiscal year end but may be reappropriated in the following 

fiscal year. 

 

NOTE  2. BUDGETARY DISCLOSURE 

 

Actual disbursements exceeded budgeted amounts in the City's Park Fund and Capital 

Improvement Fund.  The overage is mainly attributable to year-end accrual adjustments 

in the Park Fund and additional capital outlay disbursements in the Capital Improvement 

Fund.  All overages were approved by the City's Board of Aldermen. 

 



Fiscal 

Year Ending Covered

March 31, Payroll (d)

2006 99,917   84,123   15,794 1,448,801  5.81%

2007 105,769 101,852 3,917   1,593,402  6.39%

2008 107,259 105,282 1,977   1,693,615  6.22%

2009 107,012 107,012               1,698,156  6.30%

2011 135,983 125,681 10,302 1,614,623  7.78%

2013 159,593 154,962 4,631   1,588,141  9.76%

2014 173,507 173,507               1,734,519  10.00%

2015 162,552 162,552               1,716,130  9.47%

2016 148,713 148,713               1,656,628  8.98%

2017 127,693 127,693               1,540,202  8.29%

2018 107,436 107,436               1,360,516  7.90%

2019 143,975 143,975               1,643,972  8.76%

2020 158,581 154,687 3,894   1,738,848  8.90%

2021 149,987 149,987               1,702,474  8.81%

2022 150,637 150,637               1,906,060  7.90%

2023 162,144 162,144               2,037,027  7.96%

2024 195,361 195,360               2,330,441  8.38%

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER'S CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Contributions

as aContributionActuarially
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Determined Contribution Deficiency Percentage

(b)

Contribution (Excess)

(a) (a-b)

in Relation

Payroll (b/d)

of Covered



March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Net pension liability (asset) - beginning (898,631)   (378,602)     (1,025,616) (1,070,799) (836,081)   (531,391)      (2,430,641)  (1,535,820)  

Service cost 144,271    137,041      107,477      134,512      154,357     146,808       160,950       177,299       

Interest on total pension liability 500,095    521,968      506,183      541,931      583,488     583,236       569,832       619,245       

Changes in benefit terms 198,404      

Difference between expected and actual

experience of the total pension liability (214,374)   (399,644)     125,998      289,007      (324,293)   (56,695)         398,199       78,059         

Changes in assumptions 250,856    (163,541)      

Contributions - employer (147,843)   (113,861)     (112,773)     (152,693)     (150,716)   (149,732)      (160,357)      (171,019)      

Net investment (income) loss 14,401       (955,246)     (1,021,863) (547,895)     (110,721)   (2,331,882)   (6,750)          (363,469)      

Pension plan administrative expense 7,233         7,079           7,852           11,225        12,232       10,270          11,270         16,134         

Other (34,610)      155,649      143,539      (41,369)       140,343     62,286          (78,323)        13,473         

Net pension liability (asset) - ending* (378,602)   (1,025,616) (1,070,799) (836,081)     (531,391)   (2,430,641)   (1,535,820)  (1,166,098)  

Schedule is to be provided prospectively beginning with the fiscal year ending September 30, 2016.

* For further analysis of the Changes in Net Pension Liability, see the disclosure in Note 8.

Fiduciary net position as a percentage of 

the total pension liability 105.16% 114.27% 114.09% 110.23% 106.50% 129.15% 117.12% 112.39%

Covered payroll 1,650,984 1,360,516   1,370,908   1,722,929  1,567,778 1,717,056    1,938,764   2,039,192   

Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage 

of covered payroll -22.93% -75.38% -78.11% -48.53% -33.89% -141.56% -79.22% -57.18%

September 30,

2016

6
2

CITY OF ODESSA, MISSOURI

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 

 Members of the Board of Aldermen 

City of Odessa, Missouri 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 

governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of Odessa, 

Missouri, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise the City of Odessa, Missouri's basic financial statements, 

and have issued our report thereon dated July 31, 2025. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Odessa, 

Missouri's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Odessa, 

Missouri's internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 

Odessa, Missouri's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 

corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 

in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 

attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 

may exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  We did identify certain deficiencies in internal 

control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, that we consider to be 

significant deficiencies as items 2024-001 and 2024-002. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Odessa, Missouri's financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 

have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on 

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 

express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

 

City of Odessa, Missouri's Responses to Findings 

 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City of 

Odessa, Missouri's responses to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying 

schedule of findings and responses.  The City of Odessa, Missouri's responses were not subjected to 

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we express 

no opinion on them. 

 

Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Odessa, 

Missouri's internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Odessa, Missouri's internal 

control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overland Park, Kansas 

July 31, 2025 
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2024-001 SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 

 

 Criteria 

 

 The City has a lack of segregation of duties related to certain financial transactions. 

 

 Condition and Context 

 

The concept of segregation of duties is such that the authorization and recording of 

transactions, and access to the related assets is not the responsibility of the same 

individual. 

 

 Cause 

 

 The City has a limited number of employees to fully segregate duties. 

 

 Potential Effect 

 

A lack of segregation of duties increases the risk of loss or errors in recording transactions, 

safeguarding assets, and financial statement reporting. 

 

 Recommendation 

 

Although the small size of the City's accounting and other staff limits the full extent of 

segregation of duties, we believe certain additional procedures and reviews could be 

implemented to reduce the effect of incompatible duties. 

 

 Views of Responsible Officials 

 

The City concurs with the recommendations that the City of Odessa, Missouri, would 

be best served by segregating fiscal duties as outlined above.  At the current time, the 

additional staff required to implement the recommendation is not practical in order to 

allow us to fully implement the recommendation.  The City's Board of Aldermen and 

management will remain actively involved in the financial affairs of the City to provide 

oversight and independent review functions. 

 

2024-002 RELIANCE UPON THE AUDITOR 

 

 Criteria 

 

As described in our engagement letter, management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring, and for the fair presentation 

of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 

in the United States of America. 
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2024-002 RELIANCE UPON THE AUDITOR (Continued) 

 

 Condition and Context 

 

Management should possess the ability to record necessary adjustments and to 

prepare financial statements and related note disclosures in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America without the 

assistance from the auditors.  During our audit, the auditors prepared a draft of the 

financial statements and note disclosures from a trial balance containing necessary 

adjustments to properly present the City's financial records. 

 

 Cause 

 

Change in personnel within the City determined the need for the auditors to draft the 

year end financial statements, including the note disclosures and supplementary 

information.  

 

 Potential Effect 

 

The potential exists that a material misstatement of the financial statements could 

occur and not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control. 

 

 Recommendation 

 

We recommend that the City review and approve the proposed auditor adjusting entries, 

the adequacy of the financial statement disclosures, and apply analytical procedures and 

other procedures determined necessary in reviewing the draft of the financial statements. 

 

 Views of Responsible Officials 

 

The City relies on the auditors to propose adjustments necessary to prepare the  

financial statements including the related note disclosures.  The City reviews such  

financial statements and related disclosures and approves all adjustments. 
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2023-001 SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 

 

The City has a limited number of personnel involved in the accounting function, thus 

limiting its internal control procedures in relation to certain financial transactions.  This is 

a continued finding as noted in item 2024-001. 

 

2023-002 RELIANCE UPON THE AUDITOR 

 

Management should possess the ability to prepare financial statements in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America without 

assistance from the auditors.  The preparation of financial statements under this basis  

of accounting would require that management possess the ability to properly record and 

classify transactions in a general ledger and prepare the financial statements and related 

disclosures without assistance from the auditors.  This is a continued finding as noted in 

item 2024-002. 
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